
                    NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
 
MONDAY, 8TH MARCH, 2010 at 18:00 HRS - WOODSIDE HOUSE, 294 HIGH ROAD, 
WOOD GREEN N22 8YX. 
 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Bull (Chair), Adamou (Vice-Chair), Adje, Aitken, Mallett, 

Newton and Winskill 
 

 
 
Co-Optees: Ms Y. Denny (church representative) plus 1 Vacancy, Ms M Jemide 

(Parent Governor), Mr J Ejiofor (Parent Governor), Ms S Marsh (Parent 
Governor), Ms H Kania (LINk Representative) 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. WEBCASTING    
 
 Please note: This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent 

broadcast via the Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the 
Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed. The 
images and sound recording may be used for training purposes within 
the Council.  

 
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However, by entering 
the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting 
to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 

 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Committee Clerk 
at the meeting. 
 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
 
 
 
 



 

2 

3. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late 

items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will 
be dealt with at item 11 below. New items of exempt business will be dealt with at 
item below). 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the 

authority at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the 
existence and nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, 
or when the interest becomes apparent.  
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice 
the member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their 
financial position or the financial position of a person or body as described in 
paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any 
approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any 
person or body described in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct. 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS    
 
 To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, Section B, 

paragraph 29 of the Council’s constitution. 
 

6. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 6)  
 
 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 3rd December 2009. 

 
7. SAFEGUARDING PLAN  (PAGES 7 - 54)  
 
 To consider and note an update report on the progress of Haringey Safeguarding 

Plan including feedback on the recent OFSTED visit. 
 

8. SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PERFORMANCE ADVISORY COMMITTEE  
(PAGES 55 - 58)  

 
 To consider and note the report on the work of the Member’s Safeguarding Policy 

and Performance Panel. 
 

9. CHILD PROTECTION PERFORMANCE AND KEY ISSUES  (PAGES 59 - 68)  
 
 To consider and note the report on child protection performance. 

 
 



 

3 

10. NI 59 - INITIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR CHILDREN'S SOCIAL CARE 
COMPLETED WITHIN 7 DAYS  (PAGES 69 - 74)  

 
 To consider and note the report providing background details on NI59 (initial 

assessments completed within 7 days) performance issues. 
 

11. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
12. FUTURE MEETINGS    
 
 To be confirmed. 

 
 
 
Ken Pryor 
Deputy Head of Local Democracy and 
Member Services  
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Natalie Cole 
Principal Committee Co-Ordinator 
Tel: 020-8489 2919 
Fax: 020-8489 2660 
Email: Natalie.Cole@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Friday 19th February 2010 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 3 DECEMBER 2009 

 
Councillors Councillors Bull (Chair), Adamou (Vice-Chair), Allison, Aitken, Mallett 

and Newton 
 

 
Apologies Councillor Adje and Kania 

 
 
Also Present: marsh (Church Representative), Joseph Ejiofor (Parent Governor 

Representative) and Sarah Marsh (Parent Governor Representative), 
Councillors Engert and Reith 
 

 

MINUTE 

NO. 

 

SUBJECT/DECISION 

 

OSCO11. 

 
WEBCASTING 

 The meeting was recorded for live or future broadcasting on the 
Council’s website. 
 

OSCO12. 

 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 Apologies for absence were received from Helena Kania (LINks), 
Councillors Adje, Winskill (who was substituted for by Councillor 
Allison) and Dogus. 
 

OSCO13. 

 
URGENT BUSINESS 

 There was no urgent business. 
 

OSCO14. 

 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 There were no declarations of interest in relation to items on the 
agenda. 
 

OSCO15. 

 
DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS 

 There were no deputations, petitions or questions. 
 

OSCO16. 

 
MINUTES 

 RESOLVED  

 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 17th September 2009 were 
confirmed as a correct record. 
 
The following matters arose: 
 
OSCO07 – Joint Area Review Action Plan Update (Page 2 of agenda 
pack) 
 

Agenda Item 6Page 1



MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 3 DECEMBER 2009 
 

The Committee was informed that the Director of Children’s Services 
and the Deputy Director – Children & Families had attended a monthly 
meeting with Government Office for London officers the previous day 
and were informed that the request for further funding from the 
Department for Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) to cover short 
term capacity needs was being considered by the Secretary of State 
and a response would be provided the following week.  Details of the 
response would be circulated to Committee Members. 
 
The Committee asked whether the target to clear the backlog of cases 
by December 2009 had been met.  Eleanor Brazil (Deputy Director – 
Children and Families) informed members that the issue had been 
with initial and core assessments not being completed within 
timescales.  The Committee noted that whilst some assessments were 
out of time there was no backlog. 
 
OSCO08 – Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Advisory 
Committee – update on the work of the Panel (Page 3 of agenda 
pack) 
 
The Committee noted that the Children’s Safeguarding Policy and 
Practice Advisory Committee had not met since the last Child 
Protection Overview & Scrutiny Committee to discuss monitoring when 
parents failed to take their children for health checks. 
 

OSCO17. 

 
ORDER OF AGENDA 

 The order of the agenda was varied to consider item 9 first.  The 
minutes will appear in the same order as items listed on the agenda. 
 

OSCO18. 

 
JOINT AREA REVIEW ACTION PLAN - UPDATE ON PROGRESS 

 The Committee received the update on progress of the Joint Area 
Review Action Plan, introduced by Mark Gwynne (Joint Area Review 
(JAR) Programme Manager). Councillor Reith (Cabinet Member for 
Children & Young People), Eleanor Brazil (Deputy Director – Children 
& Families) and Dave Grant (Borough Commander) also attended to 
answer the Committee’s questions. 
 
A report on child protection would be requested from the NHS 
including information on processes for early intervention, GPs 
involvement in Children Centres and the role of Health Visitors.  This 
would be considered at a future meeting of the Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 
The Borough Commander explained the process for assessing 
notifications of children at risk and referring to the correct agency so 
as not to inundate the Council’s First Response Team. He explained 
that agencies were in the process of setting up multi-disciplinary 
teams in order to be more effective in referrals. The multi-disciplinary 
team would be trained on the multi-agency database systems, 
including Framework-i, with a view to being operational in April 2010. 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 3 DECEMBER 2009 
 

 
The Committee noted that the NHS had recently interviewed a number 
of Health Visitors which had resulted in only 1.6 posts being filled.   
 
The Committee were informed that a Great Ormond Street Hospital 
(GOSH) review of the Health Visitor Service had concluded that 
Health Visitors understood their roles in referring cases to other 
agencies if the threshold for a child to receive Social Care was not 
met. 
 
The Committee noted that the Children’s Safeguarding Policy and 
Practice Advisory Committee had considered information showing that 
large numbers of GPs had attended safeguarding training in Haringey.  
This information would be circulated to Committee Members. 
 
Members expressed concerns that GPs were being trained and still 
not referring potential child protection cases.  Statistics for referrals 
from GPs would be circulated to Members. 
The Committee noted that a number of actions on the Safeguarding 
Plan Milestone Report (Appendix 2 of the report) had now been 
completed or were back on track.  An updated Milestone report would 
be circulated to Committee Members. 
 
The Committee enquired about the forthcoming Ofsted/DCSF 
inspection in January 2010 and was informed that it would be an 
inspection on the progress of the Children’s Service, similar to the one 
undertaken in June 2009 although officers were seeking clarification 
about the criteria that the Service would be measured against. 
 

RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

OSCO19. 

 
CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE - UPDATE ON THE WORK OF THE 

PANEL 

 
 The Committee received the Children’s Safeguarding Policy and 

Practice Advisory Committee update introduced by Hilary Corrick 
(Independent Member of the Children’s Safeguarding Policy and 
Practice Advisory Committee). 
 
The Committee noted that, whilst there were mechanisms for 
children’s voices to be heard including child protection conferences, 
speaking to children in schools and evaluation forms, the responses 
were low.  The Advisory Committee would be considering how to 
ensure the voices of Looked After Children (LAC) and Children with 
Disabilities were heard and how they could be involved in issues that 
affected them, including formalising the Haringey Children in Care 
Council. 
 

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 3 DECEMBER 2009 
 

The Assistant Director of Adult Services, Lisa Redfern, informed the 
Committee that a workshop on the transition of children into the Adults 
Service had recently taken place and a Scrutiny Review would follow 
to consider how processes were working including the sharing of 
information between Children’s and Adult Services, cross-agency 
working, planning transitions at early stages and ways to improve.  
The outcomes of the Transition Workshop would be circulated to 
Committee Members. 
 
The Committee asked how young carers were recognised.  The 
Deputy Director – Children & Families explained that whilst Children’s 
Services were ultimately responsible for young carers there was 
difficulty in recognising children in this group. The Adults Service often 
identified young carers and the Action for Children charity worked with 
schools to assist in identifying young carers.  Officers recognised the 
importance of cross-agency working to improve the recognition of and 
support provided to young carers. 
 
The Committee requested more detail of how the Children’s 
Safeguarding Policy and Practice Advisory Committee would be 
looking at young people who were lost in the system or not picked-up 
by Children’s and Adults Services. 
 
RESOLVED 

 
That the report be noted. 
 

OSCO20. 

 
CHILD PROTECTION PERFORMANCE AND KEY ISSUES REPORT 

 The Committee received the report updating on key performance 
issues in child protection, introduced by Mark Gurrey (Interim 
Assistant Director – Children & Young People - Performance).  
 
Members were invited to ask supplementary questions to the advance 
questions and written answers that had been tabled. 
 
The Committee asked for more information about staffing levels.  
Councillor Reith (Cabinet Member for Children & Young People) and 
the Deputy Director – Children & Families, informed Members that the 
service was fully staffed but on-going recruitment was helping to 
reduce the number of agency staff in Children’s Services as well as 
having a Graduate Trainee Social Worker scheme in place which 
resulted in 6 newly qualified Social Workers joining the Council in July 
2009.  The number of trainee Social Workers would increase to 12 
plus a further 5 studying for an MA in the coming year.  The 
Committee noted, in response to its concerns about the long-term 
commitment of the 9 American Social Workers recently recruited, that 
the overseas Social Workers were contracted to a minimum of 2 years 
with Haringey; they were provided with benefits and often remained 
longer than the contracted time. 
 
The largest gaps in permanent staff were within the First Response 

Page 4



MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 3 DECEMBER 2009 
 

and Safeguarding Teams where the newly qualified Social Workers 
and newly recruited American Social Workers would move into these 
teams.  Many front-line managers were long-tem agency staff (who 
chose not to become permanent for various reasons) but the Service 
was working towards recruiting permanent managers including a 
scheme offering additional pay if they remained with the Council after 
a period of time.  The Committee noted that recruitment to Social 
Work positions was difficult in London and nationally.  
 
Officers recognised the high cost of agency staff and explained that 
current staffing levels would be retained until January 2010 to allow for 
newly qualified Social Workers to settle-into full workloads after which 
a review of staffing levels would take place. 
 
The Committee noted that Heads of First Response and Safeguarding 
had recently been appointed and a number of good responses to 
adverts for a Head of Service – Children in Care had been received.  
 
The Committee would be provided with a breakdown of vacant posts 
in each department within Children’s Services. 
 
In response to concerns about the perception that children were being 
lost in the system (for example the number of referrals received 
between April and October 2009 were higher than the number of initial 
assessments completed),  the Committee noted that some referrals, 
having been through a rigorous risk assessment, were considered to 
require “no further action” (NFA).   
 
Officers assured the Committee that children were not being lost in the 
system and a robust system, where managers received a detailed 
breakdown of cases at the start of every week, was in place to monitor 
and prioritise cases. 
 
 Hilary Corrick (Vice-Chair and Independent Member of the Policy & 
Practice Advisory Committee) highlighted that the Advisory Committee 
tracked and followed a number of referrals received by the Council 
during one day and would continue to do such random monitoring to 
ensure quality of the work of First Response Team. 
 
The Committee asked whether Police Officers cross-checked cases of 
domestic violence against the child protection register. The Borough 
Commander explained that Officers in the Police Control room 
conducted checks on individuals and other occupants of premises 
involved.  If a child was present in a property where domestic violence 
occurred a Police report would be submitted to the Council’s Social 
Care Team. 
 
The Committee noted that the advance supplementary questions 
submitted by Joseph Ejiofor (Parent Governor) were subject to further 
analysis and would be answered in writing after the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED 

Page 5



MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 3 DECEMBER 2009 
 

 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

OSCO21. 

 
NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS 

 There were no such items. 
 

OSCO22. 

 
FUTURE MEETINGS 

 The next Child Protection Overview & Scrutiny Committee will be held 
on Monday 8th March 2010 at 6pm.  
 

 
The meeting ended at 21:00 hrs. 
 
 
COUNCILLOR GIDEON BULL 
 
Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SIGNED AT MEETING…….DAY 

 

OF………………………………… 

 

CHAIR…………………………… 

Page 6



 
 
 
 

 

Overview & Scrutiny                   On 8th March 2010 
 
 

 

Report Title: Safeguarding Plan for Haringey 

 

Report of  Peter Lewis, Director of Children & Young People’s Service 

 
 
Signed :   
 

Contact Officer : Mark Gwynne, Safeguarding Plan Programme Manager  

 

 
Wards(s) affected: ALL  
 

Report for: Non Key Decision  

1. Purpose of the report (That is, the decision required)  

1.1. This report provides Scrutiny with an update on delivery of the Safeguarding 
Plan (formerly the JAR Action Plan), for the period up to January 2010. 

1.2. The report also presents the learning from the extensive quality assurance 
programme and Ofsted follow-up inspection conducted in January which is 
being incorporated into the refreshed Safeguarding Plan.  An update (Appendix 
5) will be issued as soon as the Ofsted inspection report is published, providing 
members with information on the outcome of the Ofsted report and the timeline 
to address the issues arising.  This will be supplemented by a verbal update at 
the meeting. 

 

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary) 

2.1. N/A. 
 

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and / or other Strategies: 

3.1. The Haringey Community Strategy 2007-2016 in particular the ‘Safer for all’ 
key outcome. In response to the JAR Action Plan we have strengthened our 
commitment to provide support and protection to the most vulnerable people in 
our community through the following priority: We will ‘Safeguard children and 
adults from abuse and neglect wherever possible and deal with it 

 

Agenda Item 7Page 7



 

 

appropriately and effectively if it does occur’ – Community Strategy Update, 
March 2009   

3.2. The Council Plan 2007-2010 priority of ‘Encouraging lifetime well-being at 
home, work, play and learning’  

3.3. The Children and Young People’s Plan 2009-20 in particular the ‘Stay Safe’ 
element which, in part, replicates the key actions developed within the 
Safeguarding Plan.  

3.4. Haringey Strategic Plan (NHS) 2008-2013 

3.5. Safer for all, Haringey’s Community Safety Partnership Strategy 2008-2011  
 

4. Recommendations 

4.1. To note progress in delivery of the Safeguarding Plan milestones and key 
performance indicators. 

4.2. To note the arrangements in place for managing programme level risks. 

4.3. To note the outcomes of the Ofsted follow-up inspection in January 2010 and 
the plans for refreshing the Safeguarding Plan in order to enable our 
safeguarding of children and young people to be recognised as being amongst 
the best by 2012. 

 
 
5. Reason for recommendation(s) 

5.1. This report provides Scrutiny with a progress report on the Safeguarding Plan 
for Haringey: the refreshed JAR Action Plan, the process and timescale for 
refreshing the plan and an update on the outcomes of the Ofsted follow-up visit 
in January 2010.   

5.2. Future performance reports on the refreshed plan will continue to focus on 
achievement of programme milestones, management of performance 
indicators and risk management, providing an indication of the continued 
direction of travel as well as identify areas where further support is required.  

 

 
6. Summary 

6.1. The refreshed JAR Action Plan forms the Safeguarding Plan for Haringey.  
Following delivery of the first phase of actions within the Safeguarding Plan and 
the feedback from Ofsted, the plan is being refreshed to take forward 
improvements over the period to December 2011, enabling the Council to be 
amongst the best at safeguarding children and young people by 2012. 

6.2. Development of the refreshed plan will be completed over the next few months, 
with the plan being published by June 2010.  The refresh will build on the solid 
foundations put in place over the past year to enable effective safeguarding of 
children in Haringey.  The plan will also continue to incorporate key findings 

Page 8



 

 

from the serious case reviews (SCRs) where these are yet to be completed.  

6.3. There were several challenges to achieve the desired outcome from phase 1 of 
the Safeguarding Plan,  the period June – December 2009.  These challenges 
have been highlighted in the Safeguarding Plan Milestone Report (appendix 2), 
the Performance Report (appendix 3) and the Risk Report (appendix 4).   

6.4. The Ofsted follow-up inspection took place at the end of January 2010 in order 
to assess the progress we have made since the urgent JAR in November 2008 
and the follow-up visit in June 2009.  The outcomes from this visit and an 
outline of the report published by Ofsted will be circulated separately as 
Appendix 5 once Ofsted have published their findings. 

7.  Chief Financial Officer Comments 

7.1. N/A 
 

8.  Head of Legal Services Comments 

8.1.  N/A 
 

9.  Head of Procurement Comments  

9.1. N/A 
 

10.  Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments 

10.1. N/A 
 

11.  Consultation  

11.1. N/A 
 

12.  Service Financial Comments 

12.1. Meetings have been held between all Area for Improvement lead officers and 
the Head of Finance. Based on these meetings an update of the allocations 
necessary across the seven themes has been undertaken.  

12.2. The revised analysis reflects the fact that as additional support has been 
engaged this has been deployed across various themes. 

 

13.  Use of appendices /Tables and photographs 

13.1. Appendix 1: Glossary of Terms 

13.2. Appendix 2: Safeguarding Plan Milestone Report, January 2009  

Page 9



 

 

13.3. Appendix 3: Safeguarding Plan Performance Indicator Report, January 2009 

13.4. Appendix 4: Safeguarding Plan Risk Report, January 2009 

13.5. Appendix 5: Ofsted Report Follow-Up Inspection of Progress (To Be Circulated 
Separately Once Ofsted Report is Published) 

 

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

14.1. JAR Report (December 2008) 

14.2. Annual Performance Assessment (December 2008) 

14.3. Inspection of Progress in the Provision of Safeguarding Report (July 2009) 

14.4. Inspection of Progress in the Provision of Safeguarding Report (February 2010) 
 

 

Page 10



 

 

1. Background 
 
1.1.1 In developing the JAR Action Plan back in January 2009, partners across the 

borough were keen that the Plan was ambitious and represented more than just 
addressing the JAR (Dec 2008) and APA (Dec 2008) inspection reports.  The 
intention was to unite all partners in the borough to implement more fundamental 
changes in the quality of safeguarding work.  

 
1.1.2 The ambition was to achieve a ‘positive direction of travel’ by June 2009 which 

was to be validated by the inspection.  Whilst the inspection report recognised 
progress in some areas, their overall assessment fell short of the desired 
outcome.  
 

1.1.3 Senior officers across the partnership embraced the inspection findings and 
agreed that it provided an opportune moment to review the plan.  The inspection 
team also endorsed the need for this at their feedback session and suggested 
that the timelines for delivering the plan be revisited.  

 
1.1.4 The Safeguarding Plan for Haringey (the refreshed JAR Action Plan) identified a 

streamlined plan of the key actions that were required in the short term to 
establish solid foundations on which future performance improvements could be 
delivered.  The first phase of this set out the key actions to be delivered by 
December 2009 in readiness for the January 2010 follow-up visit from Ofsted. 

 
1.1.5 A range of quality assurance mechanisms were put in place to assess 

improvement in the quality of work ahead of the inspection.  External 
assessments of progress have been commissioned to validate improvements 
and identify areas where further work is required.  In addition, a review of the 
published reports from unannounced safeguarding inspections has ensured that 
we continue to learn from others and are aware of key issues arising.   

 
1.1.6 Inspection preparation was effectively managed to ensure that: 

• We are clear about our strengths and areas for improvement; 

• Recognition should be given for some of the key areas of success that exist 
within the Borough; and 

• Plans are in place to continue to improve services and working practices in 
areas where we know further improvement is required. 

 
2. Next Steps 

 
2.1.1 Work is underway to refresh the Safeguarding Plan, providing greater focus to 

the actions for the remaining months through to December 2011 in order to 
support the ambition of having our safeguarding services recognised as 
amongst the best by 2012.  This will ensure that the momentum is maintained. 

 
2.1.2 The refreshed plan, addressing areas for further development arising from the 

Ofsted visit will be developed in partnership and approved by June 2010. 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

Overview & Scrutiny 
 
Safeguarding Plan – Glossary of Terms and Acronyms 
 

 
 
AFI Area for Improvement 
APA Annual Performance Assessment 
C&YPS Children & Young People’s Service 
CAF Common Assessment Framework 
CAIT Child Abuse Investigation Team 
CAMHS Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service 
CiC Children in Care – children in care to the local authority 
CiN Children in Need – children in receipt of a service from Children & 

Families after assessment identified a particular need 
CLU Children With Disabilities (looked after under a series of short-

term placements)  
CP Child Protection 
CPP Child Protection Plan – the agreed plan by which the statutory 

(and other) agencies will protect a child from significant harm, 
agreed at a multi-agency child protection conference 

CT Children’s Trust 
CTEMPG Children’s Trust Executive Performance Management Group 
CYPP Children & Young People’s Plan 
DCSF Department for Children, Schools & Families 
ECM Every Child Matters – government initiative with 5 themes of 

activity to focus activity in support of children and young people 
FWi Framework-I – computer system used for children & families 

casework 
GOSH Great Ormond Street Hospital in Haringey 
HCT Haringey Children’s Trust 
HSP Haringey Strategic Partnership 
JAR Joint Area Review 
LAA Local Area Agreement 
LAC Looked After Child(ren) – children in care 
LC Leaving Care – usually referring to that group of children in care,  

over the age of 16 and still in receipt of services or support 
LCT Leaving Care Team – the specialist team that take responsibility 

for (most) children in care from age 16 and see them through to 
the end of their care episode.  The team helps to find 
accommodation and either work or continued study. 

LSCB Local Safeguarding Children’s Board 
MACIE Multi-Agency Child Investigation Exercise 
MPS Metropolitan Police Service 
NMUH North Middlesex University Hospital Trust 
NQSW Newly Qualified Social Worker 
Ofsted Office for Standards in Education – undertake inspections on 

children’s services including safeguarding 
PCT Primary Care Trust 
PEP Personal Education Plan – required for every looked after child in 

Page 13



Appendix 1 

education 
R&A Referral & Assessment 
SCR Serious Case Review 
SPE Single Point of Entry 
SPSG Safeguarding Plan Steering Group 
SPPP Safeguarding Policy & Practice Panel 
SW Social Worker(s) 
UNM Unaccompanied Minor(s) – children under 18 who have come to 

this country from abroad without a parent or other attached adult 
 
 
 

Page 14



 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
. 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
r
d
in
g
 P
la
n
 M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 R
e
p
o
r
t 

 G
e
n
e
r
a
te
d
 o
n
: 
1
7
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
 

 

 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 S
ta
tu
s
 

 
N
o
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 /
 n
o
t 
o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

 
N
o
t 
o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 b
u
t 
n
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

to
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

 
A
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
n
d
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

 
A
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 d
e
s
ir
e
d
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

K
e
y
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 
p
la
y
 
a
 
fu
ll
 
ro
le
 
in
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 
T
ru
s
t,
 
L
S
C
B
 
a
n
d
 
H
S
P
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
, 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

in
to
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
n
d
 
la
u
n
c
h
 
a
 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 

c
ro
s
s
-p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 
to
 
p
ro
m
o
te
 
s
a
fe
 
a
n
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

fo
c
u
s
e
d
 o
n
 k
e
y
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 

T
ru
s
t 

jo
in
t 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
g
re
e
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

1
.0
1
 C
re
a
te
 a
 

c
u
lt
u
re
 o
f 
s
h
a
re
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 f
o
r 

a
ll
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
’s
 

c
h
il
d
re
n
 &
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 
in
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

Page 15



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

o
f 
d
ra
ft
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

e
n
c
o
m
p
a
s
s
in
g
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 

c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
ts
 a
g
re
e
d
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

D
e
 2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

C
o
m
p
o
s
it
e
 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
p
la
n
 
p
u
ll
in
g
 

to
g
e
th
e
r 

fi
n
d
in
g
s
 
o
f 

a
ll
 
S
C
R
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

 

A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

E
v
e
n
ts
 

h
e
ld
 

to
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 

fi
n
d
in
g
s
 o
f 
S
C
R
s
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

S
C
R
 
M
a
te
ri
a
ls
 
a
n
d
 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

fo
r 

d
is
s
e
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 s
ta
ff
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

1
.0
2
 L
o
c
a
l 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
 B
o
a
rd
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 

th
e
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 o
f 

S
e
ri
o
u
s
 C
a
s
e
 

R
e
v
ie
w
s
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 

B
a
d
m
a
n
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 

a
n
d
 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

fo
r 

d
is
s
e
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 

te
a
m
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

L
S
C
B
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 
S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 

s
u
b
-g
ro
u
p
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
g
re
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 
o
f 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 
a
n
d
 
T
e
rm

s
 

o
f 

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 

o
f 

s
u
b
g
ro
u
p
s
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

1
.0
3
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 

L
S
C
B
 (
a
ls
o
 s
e
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 2
.0
2
) 

G
ra
h
a
m
 

B
a
d
m
a
n
 

W
o
rk
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
a
n
d
 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 
N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
.0
4
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

F
a
m
il
y
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

F
a
m
il
y
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 
 

E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

Page 16



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

0
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 

p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 
c
y
c
le
 
a
n
d
 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 

0
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

C
A
F
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 

a
g
re
e
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 
S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

A
li
s
o
n
 B
o
th
a
m
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
 

a
n
d
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

A
li
s
o
n
 B
o
th
a
m
  

1
.0
5
 A
g
re
e
 a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
C
A
F
 

q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

P
a
n
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 C
A
F
 

p
ro
to
c
o
l 

A
li
s
o
n
 

B
o
th
a
m
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 

to
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 

p
e
o
p
le
 

a
n
d
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 

0
1
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
A
li
s
o
n
 B
o
th
a
m
  

E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
p
a
th
w
a
y
s
 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 
w
it
h
 

C
A
F
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 
S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
th
a
t 

ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
 
ta
k
e
n
 
fo
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

im
p
ro
v
e
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 

in
 
in
it
ia
l 
a
n
d
 
c
o
re
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 
is
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
m
in
im
u
m
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
re
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 m
e
t 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

1
.0
6
 E
n
s
u
re
 

q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

b
y
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 

c
h
il
d
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

re
fe
rr
a
l 
a
n
d
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

D
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 
s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

in
p
u
t 
fo
r 
R
&
A
 
e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 
w
h
il
s
t 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
fo
r 

m
u
lt
i-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

Page 17



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

C
le
a
r 

th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
to
 

o
p
e
ra
te
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t,
 
ta
rg
e
te
d
 

a
n
d
 

u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 t
o
 s
ta
ff
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

p
a
n
e
l 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 
w
it
h
 
c
le
a
r 

te
rm

s
 
o
f 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
ll
 p
a
n
e
ls
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

 

A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

1
.0
7
 D
e
li
v
e
r 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 

th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

s
o
c
ia
l 

w
o
rk
e
rs
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 
to
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 

/ 
te
a
m
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 
in
 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 

m
a
k
in
g
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

D
a
ta
 o
n
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a
t 
c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 

c
o
ll
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 L
S
C
B
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 
D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

to
 

c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
n
e
s
s
 

o
f 

in
v
it
e
s
 
to
, 
a
n
d
 
ju
d
g
e
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
o
f 

in
p
u
t 
a
t,
 c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

1
.0
8
 E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 a
t 
C
h
il
d
 

P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
o
f 
c
a
re
 
p
la
n
s
 
/ 

c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 m
in
u
te
s
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 
G
ro
u
p
 
s
e
t 
u
p
 
to
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 
d
e
li
v
e
ry
 
o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 
w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 W

o
rk
in
g
 R
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
f 

a
n
 

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

Ja
n
e
 E
li
a
s
  

H
e
a
lt
h
 
V
is
it
o
rs
 
C
h
il
d
 
P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 
&
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
 
in
 
N
e
e
d
 
fo
ld
e
rs
 
a
u
d
it
e
d
 

a
n
d
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
n
n
y
 

T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
  

1
.0
9
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

fu
rt
h
e
r 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

(J
a
n
e
 E
li
a
s
) 

Ja
n
e
 E
li
a
s
 

N
H
S
 

a
n
d
 

P
o
li
c
e
 

in
p
u
t 

in
to
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 r
e
fl
e
c
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

Ja
n
e
 E
li
a
s
  

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

Page 18



 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
a
ll
 

T
ru
s
ts
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
p
la
n
 
fo
r 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
n
n
y
 

T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
  

A
u
d
it
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

fo
r 

p
la
n
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

to
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
n
n
y
 

T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
  

1
.1
0
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
n
 

a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
c
a
re
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 

P
e
n
n
y
 

T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 
a
g
re
e
d
 
fo
r 
in
c
lu
s
io
n
 
o
f 

s
ib
li
n
g
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
n
n
y
 

T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
  

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

R
e
v
is
io
n
s
 t
o
 m
a
n
u
a
l 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 

o
n
li
n
e
 v
e
rs
io
n
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

U
p
d
a
te
d
 m
a
n
u
a
l 
la
u
n
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 s
ta
ff
 
0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

1
.1
1
 R
e
v
is
e
, 

u
p
d
a
te
 a
n
d
 

la
u
n
c
h
 t
h
e
 

re
v
is
e
d
 

c
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 s
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 

m
a
n
u
a
l 

R
a
c
h
e
l 

O
a
k
le
y
 

S
ta
ff
 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 a
 r
o
ll
in
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 u
p
d
a
te
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 m
a
n
u
a
l 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 
a
g
re
e
d
 
b
y
 
re
le
v
a
n
t 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

0
1
 J
u
n
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 
S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

A
li
s
o
n
 B
o
th
a
m
  

1
.1
2
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 

a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 

le
a
d
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 

fo
r 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 

m
o
v
in
g
 f
ro
m
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 o
r 

o
th
e
r 
s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
a
c
k
 i
n
to
 

ta
rg
e
te
d
 /
 

u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

A
li
s
o
n
 

B
o
th
a
m
 

P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
A
li
s
o
n
 B
o
th
a
m
  

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

 

Page 19



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

E
x
is
ti
n
g
 
d
ir
e
c
to
ri
e
s
 
u
p
d
a
te
 
w
it
h
 

s
u
m
m
a
ry
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 
v
io
le
n
c
e
 
 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

in
te
n
ti
o
n
s
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

fo
ll
o
w
in
g
 

re
v
ie
w
s
 
o
f 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 
b
a
s
e
; 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 a
 g
a
p
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

in
te
n
ti
o
n
s
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

fo
ll
o
w
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
li
s
t 
o
f 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
; 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 

p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

d
e
ta
il
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
ll
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
; 
a
n
d
 
g
a
p
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

1
.1
3
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

d
ir
e
c
to
ry
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 

d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
c
ri
te
ri
a
 

a
n
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
 

D
ir
e
c
to
ry
 
e
n
tr
ie
s
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
c
h
e
c
k
e
d
, 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

le
v
e
ls
 

o
f 

n
e
e
d
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
a
d
d
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
o
n
g
o
in
g
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 N
o
t 
o
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 
 

T
h
e
 d
ir
e
c
to
ry
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 i
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
W
e
 

a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 w
h
o
 w
il
l 
c
a
rr
y
 

o
u
t 
th
e
 w
o
rk
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
il
l 
b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
. 
(S
P
S
G
 U
p
d
a
te
) 
 

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

S
h
o
rt
 
te
rm

 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
a
n
d
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

 
S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

L
o
n
g
e
r 
te
rm

 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
a
n
d
 

s
ta
ff
in
g
 

le
v
e
ls
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

1
.1
4
 I
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
h
o
rt
 

te
rm

 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 
to
 
ta
k
e
 
o
n
 

c
o
m
p
le
x
 

c
a
s
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 t
o
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

E
x
tr
a
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
te
rm

 
p
la
n
s
 b
e
in
g
 m

a
d
e
 a
b
o
u
t 
e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
m
e
n
t 

le
v
e
ls
. 
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

o
ff
e
r 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 
S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

1
.1
5
 R
e
c
ru
it
 a
n
d
 

re
ta
in
 g
o
o
d
 s
ta
ff
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
o
 

S
tu
a
rt
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 

S
o
c
ia
l 

w
o
rk
 

g
ra
d
u
a
te
 

tr
a
in
e
e
 
0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 

Page 20



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 
o
f 
H
e
a
lt
h
 
V
is
it
o
rs
, 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
N
u
rs
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
P
a
e
d
ia
tr
ic
ia
n
s
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
n
n
y
 

T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
  

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 

p
la
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 N
H
S
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 
p
la
n
 
a
g
re
e
d
 
a
t 
N
H
S
H
 
B
o
a
rd
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
. 
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

H
e
a
lt
h
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 v
a
c
a
n
c
ie
s
 f
il
le
d
 a
n
d
 

s
ta
ff
 i
n
 p
o
s
t 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

R
o
ll
in
g
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
o
f 
re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
is
 

o
n
g
o
in
g
  

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 
e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

to
 
e
n
a
b
le
 
re
v
ie
w
 
o
f 
w
o
rk
lo
a
d
s
 
o
f 

H
e
a
lt
h
 
V
is
it
o
rs
, 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
N
u
rs
e
s
 
a
n
d
 

P
a
e
d
ia
tr
ic
ia
n
s
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
n
n
y
 

T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
  

N
e
w
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 i
n
 p
o
s
t 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

H
e
a
lt
h
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

v
a
c
a
n
c
ie
s
 

fi
ll
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
 i
n
 p
o
s
t 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 
N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

v
a
c
a
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

re
li
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 s
ta
ff
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 
w
o
rk
e
r 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
 b
a
s
e
li
n
e
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 
N
o
v
 0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

G
u
id
e
li
n
e
s
 
a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 
to
 
c
la
ri
fy
 
th
e
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

g
u
a
ra
n
te
e
 

a
n
d
 

e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 m
a
n
u
a
l 
u
p
d
a
te
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

c
e
n
tr
e
s
 

h
e
ld
 

to
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
’ 

a
b
il
it
y
 

to
 

d
e
li
v
e
r 
q
u
a
li
ty
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

ta
il
o
re
d
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

fo
r 

fr
o
n
t 

li
n
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 o
f 
s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 

in
to
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 
N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 J
o
rg
e
 

1
.1
6
 E
n
s
u
re
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 

s
ta
ff
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

S
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 
s
u
rv
e
y
 
c
a
rr
ie
d
 
o
u
t 
to
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
 

w
it
h
 

b
a
s
e
li
n
e
 

a
n
d
 
0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
D
e
b
b
ie
 

C
o
tt
e
ri
ll
  

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 

Page 21



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
to
 

fe
e
d
 i
n
to
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
 o
f 
p
la
n
 

H
u
b
s
 
o
f 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 
(T
a
v
is
to
c
k
 
/ 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
) 
p
ro
je
c
t 
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 f
o
r 
s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

a
g
re
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

a
u
d
it
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
n
n
y
 

T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
  

D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 
w
it
h
 
C
li
n
ic
a
l 
E
x
c
e
ll
e
n
c
e
 

G
ro
u
p
 a
b
o
u
t 
G
P
s
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 
S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
n
n
y
 

T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
  

R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 o
f 
s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 

in
to
 c
a
s
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
in
g
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 
S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
n
n
y
 

T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
  

H
e
a
lt
h
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 
tr
a
in
e
d
 
in
 
ro
le
 
&
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
n
n
y
 

T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
  

1
.1
7
 E
n
s
u
re
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
ta
ff
 

P
e
n
n
y
 

T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
 

S
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 
s
u
rv
e
y
 
c
a
rr
ie
d
 
o
u
t 
to
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
 

w
it
h
 

b
a
s
e
li
n
e
 

a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
to
 

fe
e
d
 i
n
to
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
 o
f 
p
la
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

JA
R
- 
C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 o
f 
s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 

in
to
 o
th
e
r 
re
p
o
rt
s
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 

c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 

P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

fo
r 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

1
.1
8
 E
n
s
u
re
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
p
o
li
c
e
 s
ta
ff
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 

S
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 
s
u
rv
e
y
 
c
a
rr
ie
d
 
o
u
t 
to
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
 

w
it
h
 

b
a
s
e
li
n
e
 

a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
to
 

fe
e
d
 i
n
to
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
 o
f 
p
la
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

JA
R
- 
C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 

 

Page 22



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

tr
a
in
e
d
 
in
 
th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 
a
n
d
 
u
s
e
 
o
f 

c
o
m
m
o
n
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 
o
n
 
th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 
in
to
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
C
A
F
 a
s
s
e
s
s
o
rs
 

a
n
d
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 

L
S
C
B
 

m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
 a
s
 r
o
u
ti
n
e
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

S
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 
s
ta
ff
 
tr
a
in
e
d
 
o
n
 
ri
s
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
in
g
 o
f 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 

S
y
lv
ia
 C
h
e
w
  

S
ta
ff
 
tr
a
in
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 
w
it
h
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 
in
 
c
h
il
d
 
c
e
n
tr
e
d
 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

a
n
d
 
a
u
th
o
ri
ta
ti
v
e
 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
a
n
d
 

s
o
c
ia
l 

h
is
to
ry
 

re
s
e
a
rc
h
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

A
u
th
o
ri
ta
ti
v
e
 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 
ru
n
 

fo
r 
S
o
c
ia
l 
W
o
rk
e
rs
 D
e
c
 0
9
. 
 T
ra
in
in
g
 o
n
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
h
is
to
ry
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 i
n
to
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 
o
n
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
in
g
 

ri
s
k
 a
n
d
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
it
s
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
. 
(S
P
S
G
 U
p
d
a
te
) 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

M
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 u
s
in
g
 M
A
C
IE
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

1
.1
9
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

A
g
re
e
, 
im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 
tr
a
in
 
s
ta
ff
 

o
n
 
a
 
C
ri
ti
c
a
l 
In
c
id
e
n
t 
D
e
-b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 

m
o
d
e
l 
w
it
h
in
 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 m
u
lt
i-
d
is
c
ip
li
n
a
ry
 t
e
a
m
s
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 –
 N
o
t 
o
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 

in
c
id
e
n
t 

p
ro
to
c
o
l 

a
n
d
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
in
c
id
e
n
t 
m
a
n
u
a
l 
a
re
 

b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 f
o
r 
e
n
d
 o
f 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
. 
 

M
e
th
o
d
 f
o
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 s
ta
ff
 t
ra
in
in
g
 i
s
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

b
e
in
g
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
. 

(S
P
S
G
 

U
p
d
a
te
) 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

JA
R
- 
C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

M
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 c
o
re
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 
N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

1
.2
0
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 

m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

c
o
re
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 

O
a
k
le
y
 

A
ll
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
ta
ff
 a
tt
e
n
d
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

2
8
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 N
o
t 
o
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 
 

D
ra
ft
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
; 
ti
m
e
li
n
e
 t
o
 

ro
ll
o
u
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 
in
 
2
0
1
0
/1
1
, 

s
ta
rt
in
g
 w
it
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l.
 P
il
o
t 
w
it
h
 

n
e
w
 
C
Y
P
S
/A
d
u
lt
s
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 
s
ta
ff
 
in
 

M
a
rc
h
 
2
0
1
0
. 
 
T
o
 
b
e
 
o
n
 
tr
a
c
k
 
b
y
 

s
u
m
m
e
r 
2
0
1
0
. 
(S
P
S
G
 U
p
d
a
te
) 

 R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 

 

Page 23



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 
fo
r 
c
a
s
e
 
fi
le
s
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 t
o
 s
ta
ff
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

o
f 

s
a
m
p
li
n
g
 

a
n
d
 

q
u
a
li
ta
ti
v
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
a
s
e
 f
il
e
s
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

S
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
 

a
n
d
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
u
d
it
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
a
g
re
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
. 

L
S
C
B
 
s
e
t 
a
u
d
it
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
fo
r 
2
0
1
0
-

1
1
. 
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

fo
r 

q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 
w
it
h
in
 
L
S
C
B
 

Q
A
 

s
u
b
-g
ro
u
p
 

w
o
rk
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
 

M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 

fo
r 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
ti
n
g
 

th
is
 

w
it
h
in
 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
p
la
n
 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 
to
 

b
e
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
. 
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

A
n
n
u
a
l 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 
fo
r 

c
a
s
e
 
fi
le
 

a
u
d
it
 

a
g
re
e
d
 

w
it
h
in
 

e
a
c
h
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

T
o
o
ls
 
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 
to
 
h
e
lp
 
e
n
s
u
re
 

th
e
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
o
f 
N
H
S
 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
 
m
e
e
t 

a
n
 a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
Ju
s
ti
n
 D
a
n
ie
ls
  

1
.2
1
 A
s
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 

q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 
c
re
a
te
 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 
o
n
 

w
h
a
t 
a
 q
u
a
li
ty
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
lo
o
k
s
 l
ik
e
 

2
7
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
S
y
lv
ia
 C
h
e
w
  

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

D
a
ta
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
a
u
d
it
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 
S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 J
o
rg
e
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 
a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
 
o
f 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 
I 

re
p
o
rt
s
 
in
 
c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
 
C
o
re
 

L
o
g
ic
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 J
o
rg
e
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
a
g
re
e
d
 

w
it
h
 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
to
 
a
u
d
it
 

th
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
e
a
m
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 J
o
rg
e
 

1
.2
2
 E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 q
u
a
li
ty
 a
n
d
 

re
li
a
b
il
it
y
 o
f 
d
a
ta
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 

o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 J
o
rg
e
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

Page 24



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 
fr
o
m
 
Ja
n
u
a
ry
 
to
 

Ju
n
e
 0
9
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 
N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

Ja
m
e
s
 H
o
o
d
  

H
is
to
ri
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 
o
th
e
r 
d
a
ta
 
u
s
e
d
 
to
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 b
a
s
is
 f
o
r 
p
re
d
ic
ti
o
n
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 
S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

Ja
m
e
s
 H
o
o
d
  

W
o
rk
lo
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 c
a
s
e
lo
a
d
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
n
d
 
a
n
a
ly
s
e
d
 
a
g
a
in
s
t 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 

g
o
o
d
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

Ja
m
e
s
 H
o
o
d
  

1
.2
3
 E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
in
g
 

th
e
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 

d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

fo
re
c
a
s
ti
n
g
 

fu
tu
re
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 
a
 
G
a
p
 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 
in
 

re
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
ta
ff
in
g
 a
n
d
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
Ja
m
e
s
 H
o
o
d
  

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 
a
g
re
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 

to
 N
H
S
H
 B
o
a
rd
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
n
n
y
 

T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
  

N
H
S
 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 
o
f 
L
S
C
B
 
Q
u
a
li
ty
 

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

G
ro
u
p
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 

to
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

fr
o
m
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

te
a
m
s
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
n
n
y
 

T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
  

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

d
a
s
h
b
o
a
rd
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
ri
a
ll
e
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 
S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
n
n
y
 

T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
  

1
.2
4
 N
H
S
 

p
ro
v
id
e
r 
tr
u
s
ts
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

c
a
p
a
b
il
it
y
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

P
e
n
n
y
 

T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
 

N
H
S
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
H
e
a
lt
h
 
JA
R
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 G
ro
u
p
 &
 N
H
S
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

B
o
a
rd
 

 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
n
n
y
 

T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
  

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

R
e
v
ie
w
 
a
n
d
 
re
-p
u
b
li
s
h
 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 
p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 
a
n
d
 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

b
a
rr
ie
rs
 

to
 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

a
re
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 
a
n
d
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 
to
 
e
n
a
b
le
 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

to
 
b
e
 
c
o
ll
e
c
te
d
 
a
n
d
 
s
h
a
re
d
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 
 

1
.2
5
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
, 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
, 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

E
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
to
 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

Page 25



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

s
h
o
w
in
g
 
if
 
a
 
c
h
il
d
 
h
a
s
 
a
 
c
h
il
d
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 
p
la
n
 
o
r 
n
o
t 
e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

fo
r 
A
&
E
 
s
ta
ff
 
a
t 
W
h
it
ti
n
g
to
n
 
a
n
d
 

N
M
U
H
 
a
n
d
 
fo
r 

P
C
T
, 

G
O
S
H
 
in
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 a
n
d
 C
A
M
H
S
 s
ta
ff
 

M
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 r
e
c
o
rd
 a
u
d
it
 -
 r
a
n
d
o
m
 

s
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
a
u
d
it
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 
D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

A
ll
 
s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 
re
la
te
d
 
A
c
ti
o
n
 
P
la
n
 

m
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 

w
it
h
in
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry
 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 
/ 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

A
ll
 
h
e
a
lt
h
 
re
la
te
d
 
A
c
ti
o
n
 
P
la
n
 

m
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 

w
it
h
in
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry
 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 
/ 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
n
n
y
 

T
h
o
m
p
s
o
n
  

A
ll
 
p
o
li
c
e
 
re
la
te
d
 
A
c
ti
o
n
 
P
la
n
 

m
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 

w
it
h
in
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry
 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 
/ 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

o
f 

M
o
n
th
ly
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 w
it
h
 H
e
a
d
s
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 J
o
rg
e
 

T
e
a
m
 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 F
il
e
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

T
e
a
m
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

fi
le
s
 

h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
. 
 T
h
is
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 w
il
l 
n
o
w
 b
e
 

e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
fu
rt
h
e
r 

te
a
m
s
 
a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

1
.2
6
 I
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 

L
o
c
a
l 

In
te
rp
re
ta
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 O
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

o
f 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 

a
n
d
 F
a
m
il
ie
s
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

T
e
a
m
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

P
la
n
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

2
.0
1
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 f
it
 
P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 
A
 
s
e
n
io
r 
le
a
d
 
is
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
in
 
e
a
c
h
 
0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 

Page 26



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 
w
h
o
 
w
il
l 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 
a
n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

in
 

re
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

fo
r 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 
D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

2
.0
2
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 

L
S
C
B
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 

B
a
d
m
a
n
 

N
e
w
 
L
S
C
B
 
w
o
rk
in
g
 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 
in
 
li
n
e
 
w
it
h
 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

1
.0
3
 

0
1
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
fo
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 

to
 

b
e
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 

in
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
o
li
c
ie
s
, 
p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

D
e
te
rm

in
e
 
h
o
w
 
g
ro
u
p
s
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 
in
 
d
e
li
v
e
ry
 
o
f 
JA
R
 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

2
.0
3
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

in
te
re
s
te
d
 
in
 
b
e
in
g
 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
 
in
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 J
A
R
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

0
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
2
 

 
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

2
8
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

D
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
w
it
h
 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
S
te
e
ri
n
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 
in
 
Ja
n
u
a
ry
. 
F
in
a
l 
d
ra
ft
 
o
u
t 
fo
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
D
u
e
 
d
a
te
 1
6
th
 F
e
b
 
- 
w
il
l 

b
e
 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 
a
n
d
 
s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 
to
 
E
P
M
G
 

fo
r 
s
ig
n
 o
ff
. 
 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 
 

2
.0
4
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

lo
c
a
l 

p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 s
e
t 

o
u
t 
th
e
 r
o
le
 o
f 

u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l,
 

ta
rg
e
te
d
 a
n
d
 

s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

P
a
rt
n
e
r 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
, 
0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 
 

E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

Page 27



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

fr
o
m
 
N
H
S
 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
, 
in
to
 
th
e
 
d
ra
ft
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

A
ll
 
s
ta
g
e
s
 
o
f 
th
e
 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
h
a
v
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
. 
D
ra
ft
e
d
 

in
 

c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 

N
H
S
 

le
a
d
. 

D
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
a
t 
A
re
a
 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 
a
n
d
 

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 
W
o
rk
in
g
 
S
te
e
ri
n
g
 
G
ro
u
p
s
 
- 

a
ll
 

h
a
v
e
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

p
a
rt
n
e
r 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 

re
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 

li
k
e
li
h
o
o
d
 o
f 

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 
b
y
 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 

T
ru
s
t 

0
1
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 
 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

2
.0
5
 A
ll
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 

C
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 w
il
l 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
 C
A
F
 

fo
r 
a
n
y
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 

th
a
t 
th
e
y
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
to
 b
e
 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
, 
a
s
 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
s
ta
g
e
 i
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 

O
a
k
le
y
 

R
o
ll
-o
u
t 

a
c
ro
s
s
 
a
ll
 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 
a
n
d
 

s
e
tt
in
g
s
 

0
1
 F
e
b
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 
b
e
g
u
n
, 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 
le
v
e
l 

o
f 

tr
a
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
o
rs
 t
o
 b
e
g
in
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l.
 

G
o
o
d
 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 
o
n
 
th
e
 
u
s
e
 
o
f 
th
e
 
C
A
F
 

a
s
 
a
n
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

in
 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 
a
n
d
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
. 
 

A
li
s
o
n
 B
o
th
a
m
  
E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

R
e
v
is
e
d
 t
im
e
 t
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 p
ro
je
c
t 
p
la
n
 

fo
r 

C
h
il
d
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

re
la
te
d
 

e
x
e
m
p
la
rs
 

a
n
d
 

w
o
rk
 

fl
o
w
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

2
.0
6
 R
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
IC
S
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 o
n
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
-I
 

a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 b
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
. 

R
a
c
h
e
l 

O
a
k
le
y
  

P
ro
je
c
t 
p
la
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

D
ra
ft
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
; 
ti
m
e
li
n
e
 t
o
 

ro
ll
 
o
u
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 
in
 
2
0
1
0
/1
1
, 

s
ta
rt
in
g
 w
it
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l.
 P
il
o
t 
w
it
h
 

n
e
w
 
C
Y
P
S
 
/ 
A
d
u
lt
s
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 
s
ta
ff
 
in
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

Page 28



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

N
o
n
 
c
h
il
d
 
p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 
p
a
rt
s
 
o
f 
th
e
 

s
y
s
te
m
 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 
in
 
c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 

'a
s
 
is
' 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 

m
a
p
p
e
d
. 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
o
n
 
't
o
 
b
e
' 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 
a
n
d
 
re
a
d
y
 
to
 
s
ta
rt
 

b
u
il
d
in
g
 t
h
is
 o
n
 F
W
i.
 N
e
w
 f
o
rm

s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 

c
ir
c
u
la
te
d
 
fo
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

D
e
la
y
s
 

h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
o
f 

In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
, 
th
e
re
 w
il
l 
a
ls
o
 b
e
 a
 2
 w
e
e
k
 

d
e
la
y
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
a
 F
W
I 
u
p
g
ra
d
e
 w
h
ic
h
 

w
il
l 
le
a
v
e
 u
s
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
n
 i
n
s
ta
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
a
 

w
e
e
k
 o
r 
s
o
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
p
la
n
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
fo
r 
re
v
ie
w
 

o
f 
IC
S
 
C
h
il
d
 
P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

o
n
 
F
W
-I
 
to
 
e
n
a
b
le
 
b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 s
ig
n
e
d
 o
ff
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

D
a
ta
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 
fo
r 

C
h
il
d
 
P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 
o
n
 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
-I
 

s
y
s
te
m
 

(e
.g
. 

d
a
ta
 

c
le
a
n
s
in
g
) 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

P
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 h
e
ld
 w
it
h
 s
o
c
ia
l 

w
o
rk
e
rs
 t
o
 b
u
il
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 

u
s
in
g
 F
W
-I
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

2
.0
7
 E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 

IC
S
 /
 F
W
i 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
e
a
m
s
 t
o
 

s
ta
b
il
is
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

s
y
s
te
m
 u
s
e
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
fu
tu
re
 

c
o
n
fi
g
u
ra
ti
o
n
. 

R
a
c
h
e
l 

O
a
k
le
y
 

U
s
e
 
o
f 
F
W
-I
 
e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 
to
 
C
h
il
d
re
n
 

in
 C
a
re
 H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 
J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
tu
d
y
 

o
n
 

u
s
e
 

o
f 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 

to
 

m
a
x
im
is
e
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

0
1
 A
p
r 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

2
.0
8
 U
s
e
 n
e
w
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 m
o
b
il
e
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
ta
ff
 i
n
 

d
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 

O
a
k
le
y
 

N
e
w
 

p
la
n
 

d
e
v
is
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 
(w
it
h
 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 
IT
, 

C
&
Y
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 I
T
, 
F
W
I 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
  
a
n
d
  

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
p
la
n
 
in
 
p
la
c
e
 
- 
p
il
o
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 

u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
. 
P
ro
je
c
t 
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

Page 29



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 F
o
rw
a
rd
) 

fo
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 C
&
F
 I
T
 B
o
a
rd
. 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 

P
la
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 f
o
r 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

0
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

Jo
in
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 
N
e
e
d
s
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

o
f 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

c
h
il
d
re
n
 

a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
0
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

Ji
n
 L
im
  

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 

(w
it
h
 

a
d
u
lt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
) 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

2
8
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
0
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

 
Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
g
re
e
d
 

0
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 
 

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

2
.0
9
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 f
o
r 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

to
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 h
o
w
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
o
rk
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 

c
o
m
p
le
x
 f
a
m
il
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 

v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
n
e
e
d
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 

fo
r 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
ti
n
g
 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 
v
a
lu
e
 
fo
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

0
1
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

 
Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
d
 

0
1
 F
e
b
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 
D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

2
.1
0
 W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 

s
e
tt
in
g
s
, 
th
ro
u
g
h
 

th
e
 L
S
C
B
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 i
n
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 F
o
ru
m
 

to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 

c
le
a
r 
s
e
t 
o
f 

e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 

u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
 

jo
in
t 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 

th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 f
o
r 

re
fe
rr
a
l 
to
 

ta
rg
e
te
d
 a
n
d
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
s
ig
n
e
d
 
o
ff
 
w
it
h
 
e
a
c
h
 

H
e
a
d
te
a
c
h
e
r 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

W
il
l 
b
e
 
ta
b
le
d
 
a
t 
n
e
x
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 
o
f 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 a
n
d
 S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 H
e
a
d
s
. 
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

Page 30



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

v
io
le
n
c
e
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 
 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 
C
h
il
d
re
n
 
&
 

F
a
m
il
ie
s
 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

in
 
p
o
s
t 

fr
o
m
 

1
.2
.1
0
 -
 w
il
l 
s
ta
rt
 t
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

2
.1
1
 F
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 c
h
il
d
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
re
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

c
u
rr
ic
u
lu
m
 f
o
r 

s
ta
ff
 o
f 
a
ll
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 

O
a
k
le
y
 

R
is
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 
C
h
il
d
re
n
 
&
 

F
a
m
il
ie
s
 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

in
 
p
o
s
t 

fr
o
m
 

1
.2
.1
0
 -
 w
il
l 
s
ta
rt
 t
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
ri
a
l 

c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
y
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 
a
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
fo
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 1
0
 -
 O
n
 T
ra
c
k
: 
 

C
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
ie
s
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
fo
r 

T
e
a
m
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

o
n
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

a
n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
 

S
tu
a
rt
 Y
o
u
n
g
  

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 
a
n
d
 
m
e
n
to
ri
n
g
 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 f
a
m
il
ie
s
 

te
a
m
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 1
0
 -
 O
n
 T
ra
c
k
: 
 

C
o
a
c
h
in
g
 

a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 

fo
r 

T
e
a
m
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
, 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
ie
s
 a
b
o
v
e
. 
 

S
tu
a
rt
 Y
o
u
n
g
  

R
e
v
ie
w
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
tr
a
in
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 i
n
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

0
1
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
0
 

3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 
 

S
tu
a
rt
 Y
o
u
n
g
  

2
.1
2
 A
n
a
ly
s
e
 

c
ro
s
s
-

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 i
n
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

S
tu
a
rt
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 
c
ro
s
s
-p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 

p
la
n
 

0
1
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 
 

S
tu
a
rt
 Y
o
u
n
g
  

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

2
.1
3
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 w
it
h
 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

P
ro
to
c
o
l 
fo
r 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

w
it
h
 c
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 
T
ru
s
t 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
-s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

P
ro
to
c
o
l 
s
h
a
re
d
 
w
it
h
 
a
ll
 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

Page 31



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

C
e
n
tr
e
s
. 
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 

C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 
e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 
to
 
e
n
a
b
le
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 
C
e
n
tr
e
s
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
d
a
y
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
d
 
fo
r 

e
n
d
 
o
f 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
. 
A
ll
 

a
s
p
e
c
ts
 o
f 
th
is
 t
a
s
k
 w
il
l 
b
e
 c
o
v
e
re
d
. 
 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

A
n
a
ly
s
is
 

o
f 

k
e
y
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 
to
 
d
e
te
rm

in
e
 

th
e
 

d
e
g
re
e
 

o
f 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

0
1
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

2
8
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

T
a
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
0
-1
1
 s
e
t.
  

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 
J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

T
a
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
0
-1
1
 s
e
t.
  

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

2
.1
4
 A
n
a
ly
s
e
 

k
e
y
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
p
 

q
u
a
rt
il
e
 

a
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t 
(a
ls
o
 

s
e
e
 3
.0
9
) 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

p
la
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
in
 
c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

a
g
re
e
d
 a
n
d
 d
e
li
v
e
re
d
 v
ia
 P
M
G
. 
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

A
n
a
ly
s
is
 

o
f 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 
0
1
 F
e
b
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 
N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

N
e
tw
o
rk
  
o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 
N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 
to
 
w
o
rk
 
to
g
e
th
e
r 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
rk
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

2
.1
5
 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

W
o
rk
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

to
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 
in
 
jo
in
t 

w
o
rk
in
g
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

3
.0
1
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 

L
S
C
B
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 
p
e
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
1
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
1
 

 
 

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 

Page 32



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 t
a
k
e
s
 p
la
c
e
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
1
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
1
1
 

 
 

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 a
 

p
e
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 f
ro
m
 

a
n
 L
S
C
B
 t
h
a
t 

h
a
s
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
 

g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

a
n
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

B
a
d
m
a
n
 

L
e
s
s
o
n
s
 
le
a
rn
t 

a
n
d
 
a
re
a
s
 
fo
r 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

0
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
1
1
 

3
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
2
 

 

 
S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

P
ro
c
e
s
s
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
fo
r 
re
v
ie
w
 
o
f 

c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 

L
a
m
in
g
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 –
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

0
1
 F
e
b
 2
0
0
9
 

2
8
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
0
 

 
D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

3
.0
2
 E
n
s
u
re
 

c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 L
a
m
in
g
 a
n
d
 

o
th
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n

s
 i
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 

a
n
n
u
a
ll
y
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 
e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 
fo
r 
fe
e
d
in
g
 

in
 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 
fr
o
m
 

o
th
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
s
 /
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
0
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
0
 

 

 
P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

B
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

in
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
1
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

B
e
s
t 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
S
u
b
-g
ro
u
p
 
o
f 

L
S
C
B
 

fo
rm

e
d
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 s
e
t 
o
u
t.
  

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 
b
u
il
t 

in
to
 
re
v
ie
w
 
o
f 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
1
 

 
J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
. 
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

N
e
w
 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
1
 

 
J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
. 
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

3
.0
3
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 

“b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
” 

D
D
 C
&
F
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
to
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
1
 

 
J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
. 
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

3
.0
4
 F
W
-I
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 

U
s
e
 
o
f 
F
W
-I
 
e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 
to
 
a
ll
 
k
e
y
 
0
1
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
2
 

 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  
G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

Page 33



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

te
a
m
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

e
m
b
e
d
 b
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
. 

O
a
k
le
y
 

F
W
-I
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
to
 
m
e
e
t 
b
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

0
1
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
2
 

 

 
R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
  

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

to
 

c
re
a
te
 

m
u
lt
i-

d
is
c
ip
li
n
a
ry
 t
e
a
m
 o
f 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 

&
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 
h
e
a
lt
h
 
a
n
d
 
M
P
S
 

C
A
IT
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 
D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

P
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
ta
k
e
n
 
p
la
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
o
n
 

tr
a
c
k
 
to
 
d
e
li
v
e
r.
 
D
a
v
e
 
G
ra
n
t 

h
a
s
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 d
u
e
 d
a
te
 i
s
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 

fo
rw
a
rd
 t
o
 3
1
s
t 
M
a
rc
h
 1
0
. 
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
 

c
o
-l
o
c
a
te
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

A
ll
 
e
le
m
e
n
ts
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 
a
w
a
it
in
g
 
IT
 
to
 
b
e
 
in
s
ta
ll
e
d
. 

D
a
v
e
 
G
ra
n
t 
h
a
s
 
s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 

d
u
e
 
d
a
te
 
is
 
b
ro
u
g
h
t 
fo
rw
a
rd
 
to
 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc
h
 1
0
. 
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

3
.0
5
 M
u
lt
i-

d
is
c
ip
li
n
a
ry
 t
e
a
m
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 

S
ta
ff
 
tr
a
in
e
d
 
in
 
n
e
w
 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 
a
n
d
 
m
u
lt
i-
d
is
c
ip
li
n
a
ry
 

te
a
m
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
0
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
1
0
 

 
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

fo
r 

T
h
ir
d
 

S
e
c
to
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
C
h
il
d
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

P
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
1
0
 

 
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

3
.0
6
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

T
h
ir
d
 S
e
c
to
r 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

fo
r 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 

0
1
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
1
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
2
 

 

 
E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 

 

Page 34



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 
b
u
il
t 

in
to
 
G
P
s
 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l 
P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

T
h
is
 
is
 
b
e
in
g
 
e
x
p
lo
re
d
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
te
x
t.
  

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 
b
u
il
t 

in
to
 
a
p
p
ra
is
a
l,
 
n
e
w
 
li
c
e
n
s
in
g
 
a
n
d
 

re
v
a
li
d
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
G
P
s
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

T
h
is
 
is
 
b
e
in
g
 
e
x
p
lo
re
d
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
te
x
t.
  

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

3
.0
7
 W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 D
e
a
n
e
ry
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 R
o
y
a
l 

C
o
ll
e
g
e
 o
f 
G
P
s
 t
o
 

m
a
k
e
 l
in
k
a
g
e
s
 t
o
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

F
e
a
s
ib
il
it
y
 
s
tu
d
y
 
in
to
 
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
ti
n
g
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
to
 G
P
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
 

T
h
is
 
is
 
b
e
in
g
 
e
x
p
lo
re
d
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
te
x
t.
  

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

A
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
f 
“f
a
m
il
y
” 

a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

2
8
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
1
 

 
J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
 

Ja
n
e
tt
e
 

K
a
rk
li
n
s
  

K
e
y
 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 
fo
r 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

w
it
h
 

p
ro
fi
le
d
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
n
d
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 p
la
n
s
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
1
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
 

Ja
n
e
tt
e
 

K
a
rk
li
n
s
  

3
.0
8
 U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
ta
il
e
d
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

d
e
li
v
e
r 
e
x
c
e
ll
e
n
t 

ra
ti
n
g
 

Ja
n
e
tt
e
 

K
a
rk
li
n
s
  

R
o
b
u
s
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
1
 

 

J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
 

Ja
n
e
tt
e
 

K
a
rk
li
n
s
  

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

   

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
. 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
r
d
in
g
 P
la
n
 P
e
r
fo
r
m
a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
r
s
 R
e
p
o
r
t 

 G
e
n
e
r
a
te
d
 o
n
: 
1
7
.0
2
.1
0
 

 

 

  1
. 
R
e
fe
r
r
a
l 
&
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

 

2
0
0
9
/
1
0
 

N
I
 c
o
d
e
 
N
I
 d
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
8
/
0
9
 

D
e
c
 

2
0
0
9
 

J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

T
r
e
n
d
 

V
a
lu
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

T
a
r
g
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
r
y
 

N
I 
5
9
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 

o
f 

in
it
ia
l 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 

c
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
w
it
h
in
 7
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s
 o
f 
re
fe
rr
a
l 

 
3
4
.9
%
 

4
1
.4
%
 

 
2
6
.1
%
 

 
5
3
%
 

N
I 
6
0
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 

o
f 

c
o
re
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 

c
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 
th
a
t 
w
e
re
 
c
a
rr
ie
d
 

o
u
t 
w
it
h
in
 
3
5
 
w
o
rk
in
g
 
d
a
y
s
 o
f 

th
e
ir
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 

 
4
5
.4
%
 

4
3
.7
%
 

 
4
2
.5
%
 

 
6
3
%
 

E
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
P
e
r
fo
r
m
a
n
c
e
 –
 N
I
 5
9
 

T
h
e
 
lo
w
 
p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 
o
f 
in
it
ia
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 
in
 

ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
 
is
 
a
 
re
s
u
lt
 
o
f 
a
 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
is
s
u
e
s
 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 
a
n
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 
fo
c
u
s
 o
n
 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 

b
e
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
s
 t
o
 a
 h
ig
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 

a
 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
u
t 
o
f 
ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
, 
o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
. 
W
e
 

a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
 
th
a
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

il
l 
b
e
 
p
o
o
r 
a
s
 
w
e
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 
th
e
 

w
o
rk
 
to
 
d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 
a
ll
 
o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 
w
o
rk
 
in
 
th
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
W
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
re
a
ft
e
r 
a
 
m
o
re
 
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 
m
e
a
s
u
re
 
o
f 
fu
tu
re
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
rr
iv
e
d
 a
t 
–
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
tr
e
n
d
s
 a
re
 b
e
g
in
n
in
g
 

to
 s
h
o
w
 s
o
m
e
 c
a
u
ti
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 

 E
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
P
e
r
fo
r
m
a
n
c
e
 –
 N
I
 6
0
 

T
h
e
 
lo
w
 
p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 
o
f 

c
o
re
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 
in
 

ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
 
is
 
a
 
re
s
u
lt
 
o
f 
a
 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
is
s
u
e
s
 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 
a
n
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 
fo
c
u
s
 o
n
 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 

b
e
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
s
 t
o
 a
 h
ig
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 

a
 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
u
t 
o
f 
ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
, 
o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
. 
W
e
 

a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
 
th
a
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

il
l 
b
e
 
p
o
o
r 
a
s
 
w
e
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 
th
e
 

w
o
rk
 
to
 
d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 
a
ll
 
o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 
w
o
rk
 
in
 
th
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
W
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
re
a
ft
e
r 
a
 
m
o
re
 
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 
m
e
a
s
u
re
 
o
f 
fu
tu
re
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
rr
iv
e
d
 a
t 
–
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
tr
e
n
d
s
 a
re
 b
e
g
in
n
in
g
 

to
 s
h
o
w
 s
o
m
e
 c
a
u
ti
o
u
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 

 

Page 37



 

2
0
0
9
/
1
0
 

N
I
 c
o
d
e
 
N
I
 d
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
8
/
0
9
 

D
e
c
 

2
0
0
9
 

J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

T
r
e
n
d
 

V
a
lu
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

T
a
r
g
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
r
y
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

T
h
e
re
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 h
ig
h
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 
is
 
o
v
e
ra
ll
 
5
0
%
 
m
o
re
 
th
a
n
 
th
e
 
p
re
v
io
u
s
 
tw
o
 

y
e
a
rs
. 
T
h
is
, 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 
re
c
ru
it
in
g
 

s
u
it
a
b
ly
 
q
u
a
li
fi
e
d
 
s
ta
ff
, 
h
a
s
 
im
p
a
c
te
d
 
o
n
 
o
u
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

T
h
e
 
g
ro
u
p
 
o
f 
n
e
w
ly
 
q
u
a
li
fi
e
d
 
s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 
(N
Q
S
W
) 
a
re
 

in
c
re
a
s
in
g
ly
 
ta
k
in
g
 
o
n
 
a
 
fu
ll
 
c
a
s
e
lo
a
d
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
A
m
e
ri
c
a
n
 

re
c
ru
it
s
 a
re
 n
o
w
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 a
t 
th
e
 v
e
ry
 e
a
rl
y
 s
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 

p
ic
k
in
g
 
u
p
 
w
o
rk
 
a
ft
e
r 
a
 
c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 
in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 
p
e
ri
o
d
. 
A
ll
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 
a
re
 
n
o
w
 
in
 
p
la
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 
is
 

v
e
ry
 s
ta
b
le
 -
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
a
ll
 b
u
t 
2
 r
e
m
a
in
 a
g
e
n
c
y
 s
ta
ff
 s
o
 t
h
e
re
 

re
m
a
in
s
 
a
 
n
e
e
d
 
to
 
c
re
a
te
 
a
 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

s
tr
u
c
tu
re
. 
 

 B
e
s
t 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

A
 t
h
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
is
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 w

h
ic
h
 i
s
 h
e
lp
in
g
 t
o
 c
la
ri
fy
 

a
n
d
 
e
n
a
b
le
 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 
in
 
w
h
a
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
re
fe
rr
e
d
 
to
 
th
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 W

o
rk
 i
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 o
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 l
in
k
s
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
A
F
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
to
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
a
s
e
s
 a
re
 

g
o
in
g
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
th
e
 
C
A
F
 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 
ra
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 
F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
, 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
w
 3
 t
im
e
s
 a
 w

e
e
k
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 P
o
li
c
e
 

a
n
d
 
H
e
a
lt
h
 
c
o
ll
e
a
g
u
e
s
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
a
 
m
o
re
 
h
o
li
s
ti
c
 
in
it
ia
l 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
. 
W
e
 h
a
v
e
 c
re
a
te
d
 a
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 S
c
re
e
n
in
g
 

T
e
a
m
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 a
n
d
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
 

T
e
a
m
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
a
n
d
 S
e
n
io
r 
P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
r 
a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
..
  

 R
e
c
e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
s
 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 
b
y
 
a
n
 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
S
o
c
ia
l 
W
o
rk
e
r 

a
n
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 1
6
5
 a
u
d
it
s
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 b
y
 s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 s
in
c
e
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
s
h
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 

q
u
a
li
ty
 

o
f 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

w
it
h
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

N
I 
6
8
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 
o
f 

re
fe
rr
a
ls
 

to
 

c
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 g
o
in
g
 o
n
 

to
 i
n
it
ia
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

 
6
3
.3
%
 

7
5
.3
%
 

 
5
2
.9
%
 

 
5
8
%
 

A
 t
h
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
is
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 w

h
ic
h
 i
s
 h
e
lp
in
g
 t
o
 c
la
ri
fy
 

a
n
d
 
e
n
a
b
le
 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 
in
 
w
h
a
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
re
fe
rr
e
d
 
to
 
th
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 W

o
rk
 i
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 o
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 l
in
k
s
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
A
F
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
to
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
a
s
e
s
 a
re
 

g
o
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C
A
F
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
. 
 

   

Page 38



 

 2
. 
A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
h
il
d
r
e
n
 i
n
 C
a
r
e
 

T
h
e
 m
a
jo
r
it
y
 o
f 
th
e
 f
o
ll
o
w
in
g
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r
s
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 s
m
a
ll
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
re
 t
h
e
r
e
fo
r
e
 e
a
s
il
y
 i
m
p
a
c
te
d
 b
y
 a
 s
in
g
le
 i
s
s
u
e
 (
e
.g
. 
o
n
e
 c
a
s
e
 g
o
in
g
 o
v
e
r
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
)
 

 

2
0
0
9
/
1
0
 

N
I
 c
o
d
e
 
N
I
 d
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
8
/
0
9
 

D
e
c
 

2
0
0
9
 

J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

T
r
e
n
d
 

V
a
lu
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

T
a
r
g
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
r
y
 

N
I 
6
2
 

S
ta
b
il
it
y
 

o
f 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 

o
f 

lo
o
k
e
d
 
a
ft
e
r 
c
h
il
d
re
n
: 
n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
m
o
v
e
s
 

1
4
.6
9
%
 

1
2
.2
5
%
 

1
3
.9
8
%
 

 
1
3
.9
8
%
 

 
1
1
%
 

T
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
to
 d
a
te
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 i
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 1
2
 m

o
n
th
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

e
n
d
 o
f 
Ja
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
. 
S
ix
ty
 t
w
o
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 h
a
v
e
 h
a
d
 3
 o
r 
m
o
re
 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 s
in
c
e
 A
p
ri
l 
0
9
 (
1
1
.1
1
%
) 
. 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 
c
o
n
s
id
e
r
s
 
p
e
r
fo
r
m
a
n
c
e
 
b
e
lo
w
 
1
6
%
 

to
 b
e
 g
o
o
d
. 
 R
e
d
 w
il
l 
o
n
ly
 b
e
 t
r
ig
g
e
r
e
d
 i
f 
p
e
r
fo
r
m
a
n
c
e
 

g
o
e
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 1
6
%
. 

N
I 
6
1
 

T
im
e
li
n
e
s
s
 
o
f 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 
o
f 

lo
o
k
e
d
 

a
ft
e
r 

c
h
il
d
re
n
 

fo
r 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
 
a
n
 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 
c
h
il
d
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 p
la
c
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

8
0
%
 

5
0
%
 

5
0
%
 

 
5
0
%
 

 
7
5
%
 

E
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
P
e
r
fo
r
m
a
n
c
e
 

T
h
e
 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 
fo
r 

th
is
 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

a
re
 
e
x
tr
e
m
e
ly
 
lo
w
, 
a
n
d
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
te
rp
re
te
d
 w
it
h
 c
a
re
. 
S
o
 f
a
r 
th
is
 y
e
a
r,
 

1
0
 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 
a
d
o
p
te
d
, 
a
n
d
 5
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 
w
e
re
 p
la
c
e
d
 

fo
r 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
in
 
1
2
 
m
o
n
th
s
 
o
f 
th
e
 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 
th
a
t 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
. 
N
o
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 w
e
re
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
. 
T
h
e
 

ta
rg
e
t 
fo
r 
th
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
is
 7
5
%
. 
 

 C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

G
re
a
t 
e
ff
o
rt
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 f
in
d
 f
a
m
il
ie
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
u
ll
 u
s
e
 i
s
 

b
e
in
g
 m

a
d
e
 o
f 
p
u
b
li
c
it
y
 -
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 p
la
c
e
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
re
 p
ro
fi
le
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 p
re
s
s
 a
n
d
 a
t 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 e
v
e
n
ts
. 
W
e
 w
o
rk
 

c
lo
s
e
ly
 
w
it
h
 
c
o
ll
e
a
g
u
e
s
 
in
 
th
e
 
N
o
rt
h
 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 
A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

C
o
n
s
o
rt
iu
m
 
to
 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
 
m
a
tc
h
e
s
 
w
it
h
 
a
d
o
p
ti
v
e
 
fa
m
il
ie
s
. 

C
h
il
d
re
n
 
c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 
a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
 
u
n
ti
l 
a
 
P
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
O
rd
e
r 
is
 

o
b
ta
in
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 h
a
s
 c
a
u
s
e
d
 d
e
la
y
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
s
t,
 b
u
t 
g
re
a
te
r 

a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 
to
 
ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
 
in
 
th
e
 
c
o
u
rt
s
 
m
e
a
n
 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 
a
re
 

m
o
v
in
g
 
to
w
a
rd
s
 
to
 
P
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
O
rd
e
rs
 
a
t 
a
 
fa
s
te
r 
ra
te
 
th
a
n
 

b
e
fo
re
. 
B
u
t 
th
e
re
 a
ls
o
 s
e
e
m
 t
o
 b
e
 m

o
re
 l
e
g
a
l 
c
o
m
p
le
x
it
ie
s
 i
n
 

m
a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 c
a
s
e
s
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 h
a
d
 t
o
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
. 
 

N
I 
6
6
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
 
in
 
c
a
re
 
c
a
s
e
s
 
w
h
ic
h
 

w
e
re
 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 
w
it
h
in
 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
 

9
5
.6
%
 

9
6
.4
%
 

9
2
.6
%
 

 
9
2
.6
%
 

 
9
8
.0
%
 

O
v
e
ra
ll
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
re
m
a
in
s
 v
e
ry
 g
o
o
d
 

a
n
d
 
w
h
e
re
 
re
v
ie
w
s
 
a
re
 
o
u
t 
o
f 
ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
 
th
e
re
 
a
re
 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

c
a
s
e
 
re
a
s
o
n
s
 
fo
r 
it
. 
C
lo
s
e
 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 
o
f 
th
is
 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 
is
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 w
it
h
 a
n
 e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
n
 e
a
rl
y
 a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
n
e
w
 c
a
s
e
s
 

to
 I
R
O
's
 a
n
d
 g
o
o
d
 l
ia
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 P
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 S
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

N
I 
6
3
 

S
ta
b
il
it
y
 

o
f 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 

o
f 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
c
h
il
d
re
n
: 
le
n
g
th
 o
f 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 

5
6
.2
%
 

6
9
.7
%
 

6
9
.6
%
 

 
6
9
.6
%
 

 
7
0
%
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
te
a
d
il
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 
d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

w
e
 a
re
 n
o
w
 a
t 
6
9
.6
 %

. 
If
 i
t’
s
 r
o
u
n
d
e
d
 u
p
 w
e
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 m

e
t 

o
u
r 
ta
rg
e
t 
o
f 
7
0
%
” 
 

Page 39



 

   3
. 
C
h
il
d
 P
r
o
te
c
ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 m
a
jo
r
it
y
 o
f 
th
e
 f
o
ll
o
w
in
g
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r
s
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 s
m
a
ll
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
re
 t
h
e
r
e
fo
r
e
 e
a
s
il
y
 i
m
p
a
c
te
d
 b
y
 a
 s
in
g
le
 i
s
s
u
e
 (
e
.g
. 
o
n
e
 c
a
s
e
 g
o
in
g
 o
v
e
r
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
)
 

 

2
0
0
9
/
1
0
 

N
I
 c
o
d
e
 
N
I
 d
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
8
/
0
9
 

D
e
c
 

2
0
0
9
 

J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

T
r
e
n
d
 

V
a
lu
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

T
a
r
g
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
r
y
 

N
I 
6
7
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 
o
f 
c
h
il
d
 
p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

c
a
s
e
s
 
w
h
ic
h
 
w
e
re
 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 

w
it
h
in
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
 

1
0
0
%
 

9
4
.3
%
 

9
4
.8
%
 

 
9
4
.8
%
 

 
1
0
0
%
 

E
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
P
e
r
fo
r
m
a
n
c
e
 

9
 C
P
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 l
a
te
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
to
 d
a
te
. 
A
ll
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 

h
a
v
e
 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 
b
e
e
n
 
h
e
ld
. 
N
o
 
re
v
ie
w
s
 
w
e
re
 
la
te
 
in
 

Ja
n
u
a
ry
. 
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

T
h
e
 C
h
il
d
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 a
 n
e
w
 s
y
s
te
m
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 
th
a
t 
m
o
re
 
re
v
ie
w
s
 
a
re
 
h
e
ld
 
w
it
h
in
 
ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
. 
T
h
e
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
n
e
w
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 p
la
n
s
 i
s
 p
u
tt
in
g
 s
o
m
e
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 o
n
to
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 

e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 s
y
s
te
m
. 
 

N
I 
6
5
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 

o
f 

c
h
il
d
re
n
 

b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 
th
e
 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
C
h
il
d
 

P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
a
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 o
r 

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
ti
m
e
 

5
.6
%
 

2
5
%
 

1
5
.4
%
 

 
1
3
.4
%
 

 
1
0
%
 

A
s
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 f
o
r 
th
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
a
re
 q
u
it
e
 l
o
w
, 
p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
s
 

w
il
l 
v
a
ry
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
ly
 o
n
 a
 m

o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
. 
In
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
to
 d
a
te
, 

2
4
6
 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
m
a
d
e
 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 
a
 
p
la
n
, 
a
n
d
 
3
3
 
o
f 

th
o
s
e
 h
a
d
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
 p
la
n
. 
 

T
h
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 f
o
r 
E
n
g
la
n
d
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 w
a
s
 1
3
%
, 
fo
r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 i
t 

w
a
s
 1
1
%
, 
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
o
u
r 
s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rs
 i
t 
w
a
s
 1
2
%
. 
 

N
I 
6
4
 

C
h
il
d
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
s
 l
a
s
ti
n
g
 2
 

y
e
a
rs
 o
r 
m
o
re
 

4
.7
%
 

1
9
%
 

0
%
 

 
1
5
.2
%
 

 
5
%
 

E
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
P
e
r
fo
r
m
a
n
c
e
 

T
h
is
 
is
 
n
o
t 

a
n
 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

w
h
ic
h
 
le
n
d
s
 
it
s
e
lf
 
to
 
m
o
n
th
ly
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
ta
ry
. 
C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
a
t 
le
a
s
t 
a
 s
ix
 

m
o
n
th
 
p
e
ri
o
d
. 
A
n
a
ly
s
is
 
s
h
o
w
s
 
th
a
t 
6
2
%
 
o
f 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 
w
h
o
 

s
to
p
p
e
d
 b
e
in
g
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
 p
la
n
 m

o
v
e
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
 s
y
s
te
m
. 
 

 C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

T
h
e
 C
h
il
d
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 w
il
l 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
a
u
d
it
in
g
 o
f 

th
o
s
e
 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 
w
h
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 
a
 
c
h
il
d
 
p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
 f
o
r 
1
8
 m

o
n
th
s
 o
r 
m
o
re
 (
to
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
 t
h
e
 2
-y
e
a
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
) 

to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
rk
 i
s
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
to
ri
ly
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 

n
o
 d
ri
ft
 i
n
 c
a
s
e
w
o
rk
. 
 

 T
h
o
s
e
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 w
h
o
 a
re
 b
o
th
 i
n
 c
a
re
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
 p
la
n
 c
a
n
 

b
e
 c
a
u
g
h
t 
u
p
 i
n
 a
 c
o
u
rt
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
 n
o
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
m
a
k
in
g
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
 

p
o
li
c
y
 i
s
 t
o
 r
e
ta
in
 t
h
e
m
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
h
il
d
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 s
y
s
te
m
 u
n
ti
l 
a
 

Page 40



 

2
0
0
9
/
1
0
 

N
I
 c
o
d
e
 
N
I
 d
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
8
/
0
9
 

D
e
c
 

2
0
0
9
 

J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

T
r
e
n
d
 

V
a
lu
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

T
a
r
g
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
r
y
 

c
a
re
 o
rd
e
r 
is
 m

a
d
e
. 
 

 W
e
 
w
il
l 
in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 
th
e
 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 
fo
r 
w
h
o
m
 
c
h
il
d
 
p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
c
e
a
s
e
d
. 
T
h
o
s
e
 
w
h
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
m
o
v
e
d
 
in
to
 
th
e
 
c
a
re
 

s
y
s
te
m
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
h
a
v
e
 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
 
to
 
a
 
h
ig
h
e
r 

le
v
e
l 

o
f 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 h
ig
h
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
 

p
la
n
 
w
it
h
 
a
 
c
a
te
g
o
ry
 
o
f 
n
e
g
le
c
t:
 
th
is
 
is
 
n
o
t 
s
o
m
e
th
in
g
 
th
a
t 

le
n
d
s
 i
ts
e
lf
 t
o
 q
u
ic
k
 a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
e
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t.
  

 B
e
s
t 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

O
u
r 
ta
rg
e
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 
y
e
a
r 
is
 
5
%
. 
In
 
th
e
 
y
e
a
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
, 
w
e
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 
4
.7
%
. 
T
h
e
 
E
n
g
la
n
d
 
a
v
e
ra
g
e
 
fo
r 
th
is
 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 
fo
r 

2
0
0
8
/0
9
 
w
a
s
 
6
%
, 
fo
r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 
it
 
w
a
s
 
8
%
, 
a
n
d
 
fo
r 
o
u
r 

s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rs
 i
t 
w
a
s
 9
.1
%
. 
 

  4
. 
C
A
M
H
S
 

 

2
0
0
9
/
1
0
 

N
I
 c
o
d
e
 
N
I
 d
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
8
/
0
9
 

D
e
c
 

2
0
0
9
 

J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

T
r
e
n
d
 

V
a
lu
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

T
a
r
g
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
r
y
 

N
I 
5
1
 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

o
f 

c
h
il
d
 

a
n
d
 

a
d
o
le
s
c
e
n
t 

m
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

(C
A
M
H
S
) 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

1
3
 

N
o
 d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
th
is
 r
a
n
g
e
 
N
o
 d
a
ta
 f
o
r 

th
is
 r
a
n
g
e
 

1
5
 

 
1
5
 

 

  5
. 
S
ta
ff
in
g
 v
a
c
a
n
c
ie
s
 

 

2
0
0
9
/
1
0
 

N
I
 c
o
d
e
 
N
I
 d
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
8
/
0
9
 

D
e
c
 

2
0
0
9
 

J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

T
r
e
n
d
 

V
a
lu
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

T
a
r
g
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
r
y
 

L
0
5
0
8
 

T
h
e
 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

a
n
d
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
n
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
p
o
s
ts
 
v
a
c
a
n
t 
a
t 
th
e
 

e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 m

o
n
th
. 

 
0
 

0
 

 
0
 

 
 

H
R
 a
n
d
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 m

e
t 
re
c
e
n
tl
y
, 
a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
is
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
fu
n
d
e
d
 p
o
s
ts
 i
n
 F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 h
a
s
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
. 
 

 In
 
F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 
2
5
 
o
f 
th
e
 
2
6
.5
 
p
o
s
ts
 
a
re
 
fi
ll
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

s
ta
ff
. 
In
 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
&
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 
1
5
 
o
f 
th
e
 
2
0
.6
 
p
o
s
ts
 
a
re
 

Page 41



 

2
0
0
9
/
1
0
 

N
I
 c
o
d
e
 
N
I
 d
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
8
/
0
9
 

D
e
c
 

2
0
0
9
 

J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

T
r
e
n
d
 

V
a
lu
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

T
a
r
g
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
r
y
 

fi
ll
e
d
 b
y
 a
g
e
n
c
y
 s
ta
ff
. 
 

L
0
5
0
9
 

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
te
a
m
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

a
n
d
 
s
e
n
io
r 

te
a
m
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

p
o
s
ts
 v
a
c
a
n
t 
in
 F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

a
n
d
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
n
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 m

o
n
th
. 

 
1
 

0
 

 
0
 

 
 

H
R
 a
n
d
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 m

e
t 
re
c
e
n
tl
y
, 
a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
is
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
fu
n
d
e
d
 p
o
s
ts
 i
n
 F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 h
a
s
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
. 
 

 In
 F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 7
.7
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 
p
o
s
ts
, 
1
 f
il
le
d
 b
y
 a
 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 8
 f
il
le
d
 b
y
 a
g
e
n
c
y
 s
ta
ff
. 
 

 In
 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
&
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 
th
e
re
 
a
re
 
5
.6
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
p
o
s
ts
, 
5
 

fi
ll
e
d
 b
y
 p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 2
 a
g
e
n
c
y
 s
ta
ff
. 
 

 

P
I 
S
ta
tu
s
 

 
A
le
rt
 

 
W
a
rn
in
g
 

 
O
K
 

 
U
n
k
n
o
w
n
 

 
D
a
ta
 O
n
ly
 

 

 
S
h
o
rt
 T
e
rm

 T
re
n
d
s
 

 
Im

p
ro
v
in
g
 

 
N
o
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 

 
G
e
tt
in
g
 W

o
rs
e
 

 

             

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 d
a
y
s
 p
e
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 F
a
m
il
ie
s
 (
ro
ll
in
g
 y
e
a
r)
 

Page 42



 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

N
o
v
-0
9
 

D
e
c
-0
9
 

J
a
n
-1
0
 

T
a
rg
e
t 

S
h
o
rt
 

T
re
n
d
 

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 p
e
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 

(d
a
y
s
) 
- 
C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 O
v
e
ra
ll 

F
ig
u
re
 -
 r
o
lli
n
g
 y
e
a
r 

1
6
.8
7
 

1
6
.6
2
 

1
6
.8
 

  

 

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 p
e
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 

(d
a
y
s
) 
- 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
- 
ro
lli
n
g
 y
e
a
r 

1
 

1
 

1
 

8
.5
 

 

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 p
e
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 

(d
a
y
s
) 
- 
C
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 C
a
re
 -
 r
o
lli
n
g
 y
e
a
r 

7
.0
2
 

7
.0
8
 

6
.6
6
 

8
.5
 

 

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 p
e
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 

(d
a
y
s
) 
- 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 P
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 

(C
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 C
a
re
) 
- 
ro
lli
n
g
 y
e
a
r 

2
1
.7
4
 

2
1
.2
8
 

2
0
3
3
 

8
.5
 

 

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 p
e
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 

(d
a
y
s
) 
- 
L
e
a
v
in
g
 C
a
re
 a
n
d
 A
s
y
lu
m
 -
 

ro
lli
n
g
 y
e
a
r 

1
2
.5
8
 

1
3
.1
3
 

1
4
.0
3
 

8
.5
 

 

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 p
e
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 

(d
a
y
s
) 
- 
Q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 (
C
h
ild
 

P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 R
e
v
ie
w
) 
- 
ro
lli
n
g
 y
e
a
r 

2
2
.4
3
 

2
3
.0
3
 

2
4
.8
2
 

8
.5
  

 

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 p
e
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 

(d
a
y
s
) 
- 
C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 

w
it
h
 S
p
e
c
ia
l 
N
e
e
d
s
 -
 r
o
lli
n
g
 y
e
a
r 

7
.2
 

5
.5
4
 

5
.1
2
 

8
.5
 

 

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 p
e
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 

(d
a
y
s
) 
- 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 -
 r
o
lli
n
g
 y
e
a
r 

1
.1
 

0
.8
 

  
8
.5
  

 

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 p
e
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 

(d
a
y
s
) 
- 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 -
 r
o
lli
n
g
 

y
e
a
r 

  
2
0
.6
6
 

2
0
.8
9
 

8
.5
 

 

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 p
e
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 

(d
a
y
s
) 
- 
F
ir
s
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 -
 r
o
lli
n
g
 y
e
a
r 

  
3
2
.6
8
 

3
6
.0
3
 

8
.5
 

 

 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 4
. 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
r
d
in
g
 P
la
n
 R
is
k
 R
e
p
o
r
t 

 G
e
n
e
r
a
te
d
 o
n
: 
1
7
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
 

 

 

 

R
is
k
 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

L
a
s
t 

R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 
I
m
p
a
c
t 
L
ik
e
li
h

o
o
d
 

R
is
k
 

S
c
o
r
e
 
S
ta
tu
s
 

C
o
u
n
te
r
m
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 

L
a
te
s
t 
N
o
te
 

R
is
k
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 

O
w
n
e
r
s
h
ip
 

1
. 
F
a
il
u
re

 t
o
 

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 e

a
rl
y
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 
a
n
d
 
C
h
il
d
re

n
 
C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

m
a
y
 
fa

il
 
to

 
ta

k
e
 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

re
s
u
lt
in
g
 

in
 

d
is
p
ro

p
o
rt
io
n
a
te

 
le
v
e
l 

o
f 

re
fe

rr
a
l 

to
 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 

a
n
d
 

s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

F
u
rt
h
e
rm

o
re

, 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

a
n
d
 

c
h
il
d
re

n
 
c
e
n
tr
e
s
 
m

a
y
 
fa

il
 
to

 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 
c
h
il
d
re

n
 
a
t 

ri
s
k
 
a
n
d
 

d
o
 n

o
t 
m

a
k
e
 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls
 a

t 
a
ll
. 

1
2
 J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

3
 

2
 

6
 

 

T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 
 

a
) 

R
e
g
u
la
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

w
it
h
 

h
e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

 
a
n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

s
ta

ff
 

w
it
h
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 f
o
r 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le
 

c
h
il
d
re

n
 

w
h
ic
h
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

s
 

th
e
ir
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 

o
f 

th
e
m

. 
F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le
, 

b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 

H
e
a
d
s
 

a
n
d
 

G
o
v
e
rn

o
rs

 
o
f 

th
e
 

S
C
R
 

im
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
  

b
) 

S
e
tt
in
g
 

u
p
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

fo
ru

m
 

fo
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

w
h
e
re

 

C
h
il
d
re

n
's
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

o
rk

 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
is
 i
s
 a

 t
w
o
 w

a
y
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
  

c
) 

In
v
o
lv
in
g
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

a
n
d
 

C
h
il
d
re

n
's
 
C
e
n
tr
e
s
 
in
 
re

v
ie
w
in
g
 

C
A
F
 
d
) 

W
ri
tt
e
n
 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 
to

 
a
ll
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

a
n
d
 

C
h
il
d
re

n
 

C
e
n
tr
e
's
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

  

1
1
-0
1
-
2
0
1
0
 J
a
n
 D
o
u
s
t:
 

N
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 s
ta

tu
s
. 
 

O
w
n
e
r:
  

Ja
n
 D

o
u
s
t 
(C

Y
P
S
);
 

A
u
th

o
r:
  

Ja
n
 D

o
u
s
t 
(C

Y
P
S
) 

2
. 
F
a
il
u
re

 t
o
 

re
c
ru

it
 a

n
d
 

re
ta

in
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 

T
h
e
re

 
is
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

a
 

g
a
p
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 
d
e
m

a
n
d
 
a
n
d
 
s
u
p
p
ly
 

fo
r 
h
ig
h
 q

u
a
li
ty

 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk

e
rs

 

w
it
h
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 

1
2
 J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

5
 

3
 

1
5
 

 

T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 
 

a
) 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

o
ff
e
r 

(i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 

c
li
n
ic
a
l 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io
n
, 

C
P
D
, 

1
7
-0
2
-
1
2
0
0
 E
le
a
n
o
r
 

B
r
a
z
il
. 
 

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 
a
p
p
o
in
tm

e
n
ts
 

h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 

m
a
d
e
 

a
n
d
 

a
 O

w
n
e
r:
  

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

(C
Y
P
S
);

  

A
u
th

o
r:
 R

a
c
h
e
l 

Page 45



 

R
is
k
 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

L
a
s
t 

R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 
I
m
p
a
c
t 
L
ik
e
li
h

o
o
d
 

R
is
k
 

S
c
o
r
e
 
S
ta
tu
s
 

C
o
u
n
te
r
m
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 

L
a
te
s
t 
N
o
te
 

R
is
k
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 

O
w
n
e
r
s
h
ip
 

a
n
d
 q

u
a
li
fi
e
d
 

s
ta

ff
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

m
e
d
iu
m

 t
o
 

lo
n
g
-t
e
rm

. 

o
th

e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
. 

W
it
h
in
 

th
e
 

re
fe

rr
a
l 

a
n
d
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
, 
th

e
re

 a
re

 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 n

o
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e
 t
e
a
m

 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 w
h
o
 a

re
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

a
p
p
o
in
tm

e
n
ts

. 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 s
u
p
p
ly
 a

n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
) 
 

b
) 

R
e
-d

e
s
ig
n
in
g
 
s
o
c
ia
l 

w
o
rk

 
in
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 

B
a
rk

e
rs

, 
a
 

s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t,
 

m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 

a
d
v
e
rt
is
in
g
 

a
g
e
n
c
y
  

c
) 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le
m

e
n
ti
n
g
 

s
o
c
ia
l 

w
o
rk

 
c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
e
s
 
a
s
 
a
 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m

e
n
t 

to
o
l 
 

d
) 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

m
a
p
p
in
g
 

to
 

e
n
a
b
le
 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 

a
d
v
e
rt
is
in
g
  

e
) 

O
n
-t
h
e
-j
o
b
 
c
o
a
c
h
in
g
 
w
h
ic
h
 

in
v
o
lv
e
s
 

s
e
n
io
r 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 

s
it
ti
n
g
 
a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 
s
ta

ff
 
to

 
d
ri
v
e
 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

f)
 
W

o
rk

lo
a
d
 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 
to

 
e
n
s
u
re

 

w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
c
le
a
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in
g
 

o
f 
th

e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
  

fu
rt
h
e
r 
p
u
s
h
 w

il
l 
h
a
p
p
e
n
 i
n
 

th
e
 
n
e
x
t 

fe
w
 
w
e
e
k
s
. 
 
T
h
is
 

is
 

li
n
k
e
d
 

to
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in
g
 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 

s
ta

ff
 

to
 

b
e
c
o
m

e
 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t,
 

fo
ll
o
w
e
d
 

b
y
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
c
k
 
o
f 

p
u
b
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

th
e
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 

re
p
o
rt
. 

 
T
h
e
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 
c
o
h
o
rt
 
o
f 

s
ta

rt
e
rs

 

fr
o
m

 
th

e
 
U
S
A
 
S
o
c
ia
l 
W

o
rk

 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

c
a
m

p
a
ig
n
 
w
il
l 

b
e
 i
n
 p

o
s
t 
b
y
 m

id
 M

a
rc

h
. 

A
d
v
e
rt
 
fo

r 
D
e
p
u
ty

 
D
ir
e
c
to

r 

w
il
l 

g
o
 

o
u
t 

n
e
x
t 

w
e
e
k
 

w
h
ic
h
 

w
il
l 

s
e
e
 

th
e
 

c
o
m

p
le
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

a
p
p
o
in
tm

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
n
io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

. 

O
a
k
le
y
 (
C
Y
P
S
) 

3
. 
F
a
il
u
re

 t
o
 

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

c
h
il
d
re

n
 

a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 

is
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
n
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip
 w

o
rk

in
g
. 

O
n
e
 
o
f 

th
e
 
m

a
in
 
fi
n
d
in
g
s
 
o
f 

th
e
 

JA
R
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 

re
p
o
rt
 

(D
e
c
 0

8
) 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 

a
s
 

a
n
 

a
re

a
 f
o
r 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
 

0
8
 J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

3
 

2
 

6
 

 

T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 
 

a
) 

In
te

ri
m

 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
a
ro

u
n
d
 

th
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 
a
re

 
to

 
b
e
 
s
e
t 

u
p
 

w
h
il
s
t 

th
e
 

C
h
il
d
re

n
's
 

T
ru

s
t 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
a
re

 
b
e
in
g
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d
. 

T
h
is
 

in
c
lu
d
e
s
 

a
 

C
h
il
d
re

n
's
 

T
ru

s
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
G
ro

u
p
 
m

a
d
e
 
u
p
 
o
f 

s
e
n
io
r 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 

fr
o
m

 

e
a
c
h
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip
 
(e

.g
. 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 

C
o
m

m
a
n
d
e
r,
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
h
il
d
re

n
' 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 

D
e
p
u
ty

 
C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 N

H
S
) 
 

b
) 

A
 
JA

R
 
A
c
ti
o
n
 
P
la
n
 
S
te

e
ri
n
g
 1
1
-0
1
-
2
0
1
0
 P
e
te
r
 

L
e
w
is

: 
 

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

o
f 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 

a
t 

v
ir
tu

a
ll
y
 

a
ll
 

le
v
e
ls
. 

F
ro

n
tl
in
e
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 

M
u
lt
i 

d
is
c
ip
li
n
a
ry

 

T
e
a
m

s
, 

c
o
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 
(l
a
te

s
t 

e
x
a
m

p
le
 
is
 

o
f 

S
o
c
ia
l 

W
o
rk

e
rs

 
a
t 

H
ig
h
g
a
te

 
P
o
li
c
e
 
S
ta

ti
o
n
 
to

 

jo
in
t 
w
o
rk

 
M
e
rl
in
 
7
8
s
 
p
ri
o
r 

to
 

s
u
b
m

is
s
io
n
 

to
 

F
ir
s
t 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
) 

m
id
d
le
 
a
n
d
 
to

p
 

le
v
e
l 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

(l
a
te

s
t 

e
x
a
m

p
le
 

is
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

O
w
n
e
r:
  

P
e
te

r 
L
e
w
is
 

(C
Y
P
S
);

  

A
u
th

o
r:
  

Ia
n
 B

a
il
e
y
 (
C
Y
P
S
) 

Page 46



 

R
is
k
 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

L
a
s
t 

R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 
I
m
p
a
c
t 
L
ik
e
li
h

o
o
d
 

R
is
k
 

S
c
o
r
e
 
S
ta
tu
s
 

C
o
u
n
te
r
m
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 

L
a
te
s
t 
N
o
te
 

R
is
k
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 

O
w
n
e
r
s
h
ip
 

G
ro

u
p
 

w
il
l 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 

to
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 p

la
n
 

a
n
d
 
it
s
 
c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io
n
 
w
il
l 

a
g
a
in
 

re
fl
e
c
t 
e
a
c
h
 p

a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip
  

c
) 
O
n
e
 A

re
a
 f
o
r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in
 

th
e
 
JA

R
 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
p
la
n
 
is
 
to

 
a
li
g
n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 
to

 
fa

c
il
it
a
te

 
in
te

g
ra

te
d
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 

a
n
d
 

fo
r 

fu
rt
h
e
r 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

to
 

b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

(A
F
I 
3
.4

.1
) 
 

C
h
il
d
re

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

tt
e
n
d
in
g
 

N
H
S
 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 
B
o
a
rd

 
o
n
 
a
 

re
g
u
la
r 
b
a
s
is
 t
o
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
n
, 

a
n
d
 

re
v
ie
w
, 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

is
s
u
e
s
).
  

4
. 
In

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

T
h
e
 
im

p
a
c
t 

a
n
d
 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

m
e
d
ia
 a

tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 B

a
b
y
 P

 

c
a
s
e
 

h
a
s
 

h
a
d
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

re
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 o

n
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 
C
o
u
n
c
il
. 

In
 
li
g
h
t 

o
f 

th
e
 
p
e
n
d
in
g
 
c
o
u
rt
 
c
a
s
e
 
a
n
d
 

s
e
ri
o
u
s
 

c
a
s
e
 

re
v
ie
w
s
, 

th
e
 

n
e
e
d
 
to

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
 
in
te

rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 w

il
l 
b
e
 c
ri
ti
c
a
l.
 

0
4
 J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

3
 

3
 

9
 

 

T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
  

a
) 

H
a
n
d
li
n
g
 
p
la
n
 
d
ra

w
n
 
u
p
 
fo

r 

w
h
e
n
e
v
e
r 

th
e
 

Ju
d
ic
ia
l 

R
e
v
ie
w
 

re
s
u
lt
 

is
 

a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
d
, 

c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 

e
it
h
e
r 

re
s
u
lt
, 

i.
e
. 

fo
r 

o
r 

a
g
a
in
s
t 

th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

m
e
d
ia
 
li
n
e
s
 
to

 
ta

k
e
. 

T
h
e
re

 
is
 
a
 

Q
&
A
 b

ri
e
f 
to

 g
o
 w

it
h
 t
h
is
. 
 

b
) 

P
la
n
 d

ra
w
n
 u

p
 i
n
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 

fo
r 
O
fs
te

d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
. 
 

c
) 

M
e
d
ia
 
h
a
n
d
li
n
g
 
p
la
n
 
b
e
in
g
 

p
re

p
a
re

d
 f
o
r 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 t
ri
a
l 

a
n
d
 
th

e
 
p
u
b
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

th
e
 
S
C
R
 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 X

&
U
 c
a
s
e
. 
 

d
) 

M
e
d
ia
 
c
o
v
e
ra

g
e
 
is
 
c
o
n
s
ta

n
tl
y
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 

s
o
 

th
a
t 

fu
rt
h
e
r 

c
o
u
n
te

rm
e
a
s
u
re

s
 
c
a
n
 
b
e
 
p
u
t 

in
 

p
la
c
e
 w

h
e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 
 

e
) 

P
ro

to
c
o
l 

a
g
re

e
d
 
w
it
h
 
L
e
g
a
l 

a
n
d
 

C
Y
P
S
 

fo
r 

ti
m

e
ly
 

c
o
m

m
s
. 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 a

n
y
 n

e
w
 c
a
s
e
s
. 
 

0
4
-1
2
-
2
0
0
9
 C
h
a
r
le
s
 

S
k
in
n
e
r
: 
 

N
e
w
 

c
o
u
n
te

rm
e
a
s
u
re

s
 

a
d
d
e
d
. 
 

O
w
n
e
r:
  

C
h
a
rl
e
s
 S

k
in

n
e
r 

(H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
);
  

A
u
th

o
r:
  

L
e
a
 F

o
u
n
ta

in
 

(H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
) 

5
. 
F
a
il
u
re

 t
o
 

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 

m
o
ti
v
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

m
o
ra

le
 

S
ta

ff
 
m

o
ra

le
 
a
n
d
 
m

o
ti
v
a
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
ff
e
c
te

d
 
a
s
 
a
 
re

s
u
lt
 

o
f 

th
e
 
B
a
b
y
 
 
P
 
c
a
s
e
 
w
it
h
 

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 s

e
n
io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 

d
is
m

is
s
a
l 

o
f 

0
8
 J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

3
 

3
 

9
 

 

T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 
 

a
) 

T
h
e
 

T
a
v
is
to

c
k
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 a

 y
e
a
r 
lo
n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

o
f 
im

p
ro

v
in
g
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 1
1
-0
1
-
2
0
1
0
 P
e
te
r
 

L
e
w
is

: 
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 
w
it
h
 

s
m

a
ll
 

a
n
d
 
la
rg

e
 
g
ro

u
p
s
 
o
f 

s
ta

ff
 

in
d
ic
a
te

s
 
re

d
u
c
in
g
 
ri
s
k
 
o
f 

O
w
n
e
r:
  

P
e
te

r 
L
e
w
is
 

(C
Y
P
S
);

  

A
u
th

o
r:
  

Ia
n
 B

a
il
e
y
 (
C
Y
P
S
) 

Page 47



 

R
is
k
 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

L
a
s
t 

R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 
I
m
p
a
c
t 
L
ik
e
li
h

o
o
d
 

R
is
k
 

S
c
o
r
e
 
S
ta
tu
s
 

C
o
u
n
te
r
m
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 

L
a
te
s
t 
N
o
te
 

R
is
k
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 

O
w
n
e
r
s
h
ip
 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 

a
m

o
n
g
 s
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re

 

s
ta

ff
 

w
h
e
re

 
d
e
e
m

e
d
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 

in
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

d
is
c
ip
li
n
a
ry

 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 

w
h
e
re

 
d
e
e
m

e
d
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
 
 
In

 
a
d
d
it
io
n
, 

th
e
re

 a
re

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 t
h
a
t 
h
e
a
v
y
 

w
o
rk

lo
a
d
s
, 

m
e
d
ia
 

s
p
o
tl
ig
h
t 

a
n
d
 

g
e
n
e
ra

l 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

re
s
u
lt
in
g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
is
 t
ra

g
ic
 c
a
s
e
 

c
o
u
ld
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 s

tr
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 /
 o

r 

b
u
rn

 o
u
t.
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
  

b
) 

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
in
g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 

to
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
 a

n
d
 g

a
th

e
r 
s
ta

ff
 u

s
e
 a

n
d
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 

d
ia
lo
g
u
e
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

(a
s
 

p
e
r 

6
.4

.2
) 
o
f 
th

e
 J
A
R
 A

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
  

c
) 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
th

e
 
s
ta

ff
 
q
u
a
li
ty

 

a
n
d
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 
a
n
d
 

d
) 

w
e
e
k
ly
 
e
-b

u
ll
e
ti
n
s
 
fo

r 
a
ll
 
C
Y
P
S
 

s
ta

ff
 
to

 
k
e
e
p
 
th

e
m

 
in
fo

rm
e
d
 
o
f 

a
ll
 d

e
v
e
lo
p
m

e
n
ts

  

d
) 
P
ro

v
id
e
 s

ta
ff
 w

it
h
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

 

s
tr
e
s
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
, 
in
 o

rd
e
r 
to

 g
a
u
g
e
 

h
o
w
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
o
f 

s
ta

ff
 

a
re

 

fe
e
li
n
g
, 
in
 o

rd
e
r 
to

 t
h
e
n
 d

e
c
id
e
 i
f 

fu
rt
h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

is
 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 

to
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p

e
o
p
le
  

e
) 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

fr
o
m

 
o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id
e
d
 f
o
r 
s
ta

ff
 (
if
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
) 
 

m
o
ra

le
 

a
n
d
 

m
o
ti
v
a
ti
o
n
 

b
e
in
g
 
o
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 
p
o
s
it
iv
e
. 

T
h
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 s

o
m

e
 f
a
ll
o
u
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
e
n
d
in
g
 t
ri
a
l 
in
 

th
e
 X

&
U
 c

a
s
e
 w

h
ic
h
 m

e
a
n
s
 

th
e
 
ri
s
k
 
ra

ti
n
g
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t 

c
h
a
n
g
e
. 
 

6
. 
D
a
ta

 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
li
ty

 

c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts

 w
il
l 

li
m

it
 /
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

v
it
a
l 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 

T
h
e
re

 
is
 

a
 

ri
s
k
 

th
a
t 

d
a
ta

 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
li
ty

 

c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts

 w
il
l 
li
m

it
 /
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

v
it
a
l 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

th
e
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

in
 

re
la
ti
o
n
 

to
 

c
h
il
d
re

n
 

a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 

w
it
h
in
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 

1
2
 J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

4
 

2
 

8
 

 

T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 
 

a
) 

R
e
g
u
la
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

w
it
h
 

h
e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

 
a
n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

s
ta

ff
 

w
it
h
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 f
o
r 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le
 

c
h
il
d
re

n
 

w
h
ic
h
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

s
 

th
e
ir
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 

o
f 

th
e
m

. 
F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le
, 

b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 

H
e
a
d
s
 

a
n
d
 

G
o
v
e
rn

o
rs

 
o
f 

th
e
 

S
C
R
 

im
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
  

b
) 

S
e
tt
in
g
 

u
p
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

fo
ru

m
 

fo
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

w
h
e
re

 

C
h
il
d
re

n
's
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

o
rk

 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
is
 i
s
 a

 t
w
o
 w

a
y
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
  

c
) 

In
v
o
lv
in
g
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

a
n
d
 1
1
-0
1
-
2
0
1
0
 J
a
n
 D
o
u
s
t:
 

N
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 s
ta

tu
s
. 
 

O
w
n
e
r:
 

 J
a
n
 D

o
u
s
t 

(C
Y
P
S
);

  

A
u
th

o
r:
  

Ia
n
 B

a
il
e
y
 (
C
Y
P
S
) 

Page 48



 

R
is
k
 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

L
a
s
t 

R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 
I
m
p
a
c
t 
L
ik
e
li
h

o
o
d
 

R
is
k
 

S
c
o
r
e
 
S
ta
tu
s
 

C
o
u
n
te
r
m
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 

L
a
te
s
t 
N
o
te
 

R
is
k
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 

O
w
n
e
r
s
h
ip
 

C
h
il
d
re

n
's
 
C
e
n
tr
e
s
 
in
 
re

v
ie
w
in
g
 

C
A
F
  

d
) 

W
ri
tt
e
n
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 

to
 

a
ll
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

a
n
d
 

C
h
il
d
re

n
 

C
e
n
tr
e
's
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

  

7
. 
T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 

ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

n
e
w
 

m
e
th

o
d
o
lo
g
y
 i
n
 

R
e
fe

rr
a
l 
&
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
w
il
l 

n
o
t 
d
e
li
v
e
r 
th

e
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

c
o
p
e
 w

it
h
 

d
e
m

a
n
d
s
 o

n
 

R
&
A
 a

n
d
 a

v
o
id
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
b
a
c
k
lo
g
 

b
u
il
d
 u

p
 o

f 

c
a
s
e
s
 

M
o
v
in
g
 

fr
o
m

 
tw

o
 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
 

te
a
m

s
 d

e
a
li
n
g
 w

it
h
 I
n
it
ia
l 
a
n
d
 

C
o
re

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 a

 s
in
g
le
, 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

is
 

d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 
to

 
m

a
k
e
 
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

th
e
re

 
is
 
n
o
 
b
re

a
k
d
o
w
n
 
in
 
th

e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in
g
 

o
f 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

It
 

w
il
l 

a
ls
o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 

th
e
 

q
u
a
li
ty

 
o
f 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

fo
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 
to

 
d
e
a
l 

w
it
h
 

fe
w
e
r 

s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk

e
rs

 
a
s
 
th

e
y
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
. 

0
1
 D

e
c
 

2
0
0
9
 

4
 

2
 

8
 

 

T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
  

a
) 

R
e
g
u
la
r 

a
n
d
 

c
a
re

fu
l 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

o
f 

w
o
rk

fl
o
w
 

(i
.e

. 

In
te

n
s
iv
e
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 o

f 
w
o
rk

) 
 

b
) 

Q
u
a
li
ty

 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 b

y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

  

c
) 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

b
y
 

D
D
C
&
F
 

a
n
d
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
 

d
) 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 (
in
 U

K
 a

n
d
 a

b
ro

a
d
) 
 

e
) 

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

n
e
w
 
te

a
m

 
o
f 

n
e
w
ly
 q

u
a
li
fi
e
d
 S

o
c
ia
l 
W

o
rk

e
rs

 i
n
 

R
&
A
  

1
8
-0
1
-
1
0
 M
a
r
k
 G
w
y
n
n
e
: 

W
h
il
s
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 
m

a
d
e
, 
th

e
re

 
re

m
a
in
s
 

a
 
(r
e
d
u
c
in
g
) 

ri
s
k
. 
T
h
e
 
n
e
w
 

S
o
c
ia
l 

W
o
rk

e
rs

 
h
a
v
e
 

s
ta

rt
e
d
 
to

 
d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 
m

o
re

 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in
g
 
w
o
rk

 
a
s
 
w
e
ll
 

a
s
 
n
e
w
 
w
o
rk

 
c
o
m

in
g
 
in
 
to

 

th
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
h
is
 

is
 

re
d
u
c
in
g
 

th
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

u
n
a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
 

c
a
s
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

h
e
lp
in
g
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
n
e
w
 

w
o
rk

 
is
 
d
e
a
lt
 
w
it
h
 
in
 
ti
m

e
. 

T
h
e
 
F
ir
s
t 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 
M
u
lt
i-

A
g
e
n
c
y
 
T
e
a
m

 
(M

A
T
) 

is
 
in

 

p
la
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

is
 

h
e
lp
in
g
 

to
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 
c
a
s
e
s
, 

d
e
a
l 

w
it
h
 

s
o
m

e
 
c
o
m

p
le
x
 
c
a
s
e
s
 
a
n
d
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 

th
e
 

q
u
a
li
ty

 
o
f 

w
o
rk

. 
 

O
w
n
e
r:
  

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra

z
il
 

(C
Y
P
S
);

  

A
u
th

o
r:
  

P
e
te

r 
L
e
w
is
 

(C
Y
P
S
) 

8
. 
T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 

ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

R
&
A
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
 

s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 

n
o
t 
s
ta

b
le
 

e
n
o
u
g
h
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 R

&
A
 

T
h
e
re

 
is
 
a
 
ri
s
k
 
th

a
t 

th
e
 
R
&
A
 

te
le
p
h
o
n
y
 

s
y
s
te

m
 

a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu

re
 

is
 

n
o
t 

s
ta

b
le
 
e
n
o
u
g
h
 
to

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 
a
 
h
ig
h
 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

 
a
n
d
 

s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
 

a
re

a
 

o
f 

w
o
rk

 
, 

d
e
s
p
it
e
 

b
e
in
g
 

re
c
o
n
fi
g
u
re

d
 

re
c
e
n
tl
y
, 

w
h
ic
h
 
if
 
p
ro

b
le
m

s
 

a
ri
s
e
 

w
il
l 

a
d
d
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 

p
ro

b
le
m

s
 
to

 
th

e
 
b
a
c
k
lo
g
 
o
f 

R
e
fe

rr
a
l 
&
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
c
a
s
e
s
. 

0
1
 D

e
c
 

2
0
0
9
 

C
L
O
S
E
D
 

 

T
o
 
li
a
is
e
 
w
it
h
 
th

e
 
IP

 
T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

to
 

d
e
te

rm
in
e
 

if
 

th
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

c
a
n
 
o
ff
e
r 

a
 
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 
to

 

th
e
 R

&
A
 T

e
a
m

 a
n
d
 i
f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
a
n
 
b
e
 
fl
e
x
e
d
 
to

 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 
th

e
 

R
&
A
 t
e
a
m

 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

e
d
iu
m

 t
e
rm

. 
 

0
1
-1
2
-
2
0
0
9
 E
le
a
n
o
r
 

B
r
a
z
il
: 

R
is
k
 c
lo
s
e
d
. 
 

T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
 s
y
s
te

m
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

O
w
n
e
r:
  

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra

z
il
 

(C
Y
P
S
);

  

A
u
th

o
r:
  

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

(C
Y
P
S
) 

Page 49



 

R
is
k
 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

L
a
s
t 

R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 
I
m
p
a
c
t 
L
ik
e
li
h

o
o
d
 

R
is
k
 

S
c
o
r
e
 
S
ta
tu
s
 

C
o
u
n
te
r
m
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 

L
a
te
s
t 
N
o
te
 

R
is
k
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 

O
w
n
e
r
s
h
ip
 

9
. 
T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 

ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 t
ri
a
l 
a
n
d
 

X
&
U
 t
ri
a
l 
w
il
l 

h
a
v
e
 a

 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

C
&
Y
P
S
 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

re
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 

th
e
 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

s
 a

 

w
h
o
le
. 

T
h
e
re

 
is
 

a
 

ri
s
k
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 

tr
ia
l 

w
il
l 

h
a
v
e
 

a
 

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 

C
&
Y
P
S
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 

th
e
 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le
. 

0
8
 J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

C
L
O
S
E
D
 

 

T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 
 

a
) 

In
te

ri
m

 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
a
ro

u
n
d
 

th
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 
a
re

 
to

 
b
e
 
s
e
t 

u
p
 

w
h
il
s
t 

th
e
 

C
h
il
d
re

n
's
 

T
ru

s
t 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
a
re

 
b
e
in
g
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d
. 

T
h
is
 

in
c
lu
d
e
s
 

a
 

C
h
il
d
re

n
's
 

T
ru

s
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
G
ro

u
p
 
m

a
d
e
 
u
p
 
o
f 

s
e
n
io
r 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 

fr
o
m

 

e
a
c
h
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip
 
(e

.g
. 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 

C
o
m

m
a
n
d
e
r,
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
h
il
d
re

n
' 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 

D
e
p
u
ty

 
C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 N

H
S
) 
 

b
) 

A
 
JA

R
 
A
c
ti
o
n
 
P
la
n
 
S
te

e
ri
n
g
 

G
ro

u
p
 

w
il
l 

b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 

to
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 p

la
n
 

a
n
d
 
it
s
 
c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io
n
 
w
il
l 

a
g
a
in
 

re
fl
e
c
t 
e
a
c
h
 p

a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip
  

c
) 
O
n
e
 A

re
a
 f
o
r 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in
 

th
e
 
JA

R
 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
p
la
n
 
is
 
to

 
a
li
g
n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 
to

 
fa

c
il
it
a
te

 
in
te

g
ra

te
d
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 

a
n
d
 

fo
r 

fu
rt
h
e
r 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 b

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

1
7
-0
2
-
2
0
1
0
 S
P
S
G
: 

R
is
k
 c
lo
s
e
d
. 

S
e
n
te

n
c
in
g
 f
o
ll
o
w
in
g
 X

 &
 U

 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
to

d
a
y
. 
 

O
w
n
e
r:
  

P
e
te

r 
L
e
w
is
 

(C
Y
P
S
);

  

A
u
th

o
r:
  

K
u
ld
ip
 K

a
u
r 

(H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
) 

1
0
. 
In

s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
to

 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

ll
y
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 J
A
R
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

T
h
e
re

 
is
 
a
 
ri
s
k
 
th

a
t 

th
e
 
JA

R
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 
P
la
n
 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 
d
o
e
s
 

n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 s

u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
  

a
n
d
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

to
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

ll
y
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 
th

e
 
d
e
li
v
e
ry

 
o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

–
 

p
o
s
s
ib
il
it
y
 

o
f 

fu
rt
h
e
r 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 
a
n
d
 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 

3
0
 N

o
v
 

2
0
0
9
 

4
 

2
 

8
 

 

T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 
 

a
) 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 
c
a
s
e
 
s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 
to

 

th
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
C
h
il
d
re

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 
a
 P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 
 

b
) 

R
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

in
 

p
la
c
e
 

to
 

a
p
p
o
in
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
  

c
) 

E
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

in
to

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

fo
r 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

o
ff
ic
e
r 
 

1
1
-0
1
-
2
0
1
0
 P
e
te
r
 

L
e
w
is

: 
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
0
-

2
0
1
1
 a

re
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
a
ly
s
is
 

o
f 

li
k
e
ly
 
n
e
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
. 

'R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
' 

s
u
c
h
 
a
s
 
h
ig

h
 

q
u
a
li
ty

 
s
ta

ff
 
a
re

 
in
 
s
h
o
rt
 

s
u
p
p
ly
 

re
g
io
n
a
ll
y
 

a
n
d
 

lo
c
a
ll
y
 
- 

s
o
 
ri
s
k
 
p
e
rs

is
ts

 

p
e
n
d
in
g
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 

O
w
n
e
r:
  

P
e
te

r 
L
e
w
is
 

(C
Y
P
S
);

  

A
u
th

o
r:
 

P
e
te

r 
L
e
w
is
 

(C
Y
P
S
) 

Page 50



 

R
is
k
 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

L
a
s
t 

R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 
I
m
p
a
c
t 
L
ik
e
li
h

o
o
d
 

R
is
k
 

S
c
o
r
e
 
S
ta
tu
s
 

C
o
u
n
te
r
m
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 

L
a
te
s
t 
N
o
te
 

R
is
k
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 

O
w
n
e
r
s
h
ip
 

d
) 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
  

e
) 

S
iz
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
s
c
o
p
in
g
 
o
f 

w
o
rk

 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g
u
la
r 
b
a
s
is
  

f)
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 C

&
Y
P
S
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
s
 

to
 

d
e
te

rm
in
e
 

a
n
y
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

  

 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t.
  

1
1
. 
In

c
re

a
s
in
g
 

w
o
rk

lo
a
d
 f
o
r 

R
&
A
 w

h
e
n
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

c
a
m

p
a
ig
n
 i
s
 

la
u
n
c
h
e
d
 

T
h
e
re

 
is
 

a
 

ri
s
k
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

c
o
m

m
s
 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 
w
il
l 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 
re

fe
rr
a
ls
 m

a
d
e
, 

im
p
a
c
ti
n
g
 
o
n
 
th

e
 
w
o
rk

 
a
n
d
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

w
it
h
in
 

R
&
A
 

a
n
d
 

re
s
u
lt
in
g
 

in
 

a
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

b
a
c
k
lo
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 
0
1
 D

e
c
 

2
0
0
9
 

C
L
O
S
E
D
 

 

T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 
 

a
) 
C
a
re

fu
l 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra

ti
o
n
 g

iv
e
n
 t
o
 

d
e
s
ir
e
d
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
rs

 
a
n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 
to

 
c
a
u
s
e
 
th

e
 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
  

b
) 
M
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 t
e
s
te

d
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff
 t
o
 

g
e
t 
th

e
ir
 v

ie
w
s
 f
ir
s
t 
 

c
) 

M
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 

ti
m

e
d
 

n
o
t 

to
 

h
a
p
p
e
n
 
b
e
fo

re
 
s
ta

ff
 
a
re

 
a
b
le
 
to

 

c
o
p
e
 w

it
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
  

d
) 

C
o
n
s
id
e
ra

ti
o
n
 
to

 
b
e
 
g
iv
e
n
 
to

 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 

d
e
ta

il
s
 
ra

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 

F
ir
s
t 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 
b
e
in
g
 u

s
e
d
  

0
1
-1
2
-
2
0
0
9
 E
le
a
n
o
r
 

B
r
a
z
il
: 
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 
c
a
m

p
a
ig
n
 

h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
c
o
m

p
le
te

d
. 

T
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
fe

rr
a
ls
 

h
a
s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

h
o
w
e
v
e
r 

it
 

is
 

u
n
c
le
a
r 

a
s
 
to

 
w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
is
 

w
a
s
 

a
s
 

a
 

re
s
u
lt
 

o
f 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

R
is
k
 
c
lo
s
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
w
il
l 

fo
rm

 

p
a
rt
 o

f 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u
a
l.
  

O
w
n
e
r:
  

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra

z
il
 

(C
Y
P
S
);

  

A
u
th

o
r:
  

M
a
rk

 G
w
y
n
n
e
 

(C
Y
P
S
) 

1
2
. 
N
e
w
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 

fo
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 

e
m

p
h
a
s
is
 o

n
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

T
h
e
re

 
is
 
a
 
ri
s
k
 
th

a
t 

th
e
 
n
e
w
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 

m
e
th

o
d
o
lo
g
y
 

fo
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
w
h
ic
h
 
p
la
c
e
s
 
g
re

a
te

r 

e
m

p
h
a
s
is
 

o
n
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
, 

c
o
u
ld
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 
is
s
u
e
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 

h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
b
e
e
n
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
, 

im
p
a
c
ti
n
g
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l'
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

fe
e
d
in
g
 

d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 J
A
R
 /
 C

A
A
 

0
7
 J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

5
 

4
 

2
0
 

 

a
) 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

s
e
n
t 

to
 

a
ll
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

n
e
w
 

O
fs
te

d
 

fr
a
m

e
w
o
rk

 
a
n
d
 
in
 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 

th
e
 

fo
c
u
s
 o

n
 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
  

b
) 
T
ra

in
in
g
 a

n
d
 b

ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 o

ff
e
re

d
 

to
 

a
ll
 

g
o
v
e
rn

in
g
 

b
o
d
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 

h
e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

 o
n
 t
h
e
 n

e
w
 O

fs
te

d
 

fr
a
m

e
w
o
rk

  

c
) 

O
fs
te

d
 
p
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 
s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 

fo
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
h
o
u
g
h
t 
to

 b
e
 d

u
e
 a

n
 

O
fs
te

d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
  

d
) 

C
h
e
c
k
li
s
t 

fo
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

o
n
 0
5
-0
1
-
2
0
1
0
J
a
n
e
tt
e
 

K
a
r
k
li
n
s
: 
 

S
in
c
e
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

th
e
re

 
h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 

1
2
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 o

r 
b
e
tt
e
r 
in
 1

1
, 

1
 

in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

. 
In

s
p
e
c
to

rs
 

h
a
v
e
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
te

d
 

fa
v
o
u
ra

b
ly
 o

n
 t
h
e
 g

u
id
a
n
c
e
 

p
ro

v
id
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

L
A
s
 

h
a
v
e
 
re

q
u
e
s
te

d
 
c
o
p
ie
s
 
a
s
 O

w
n
e
r:
  

Ja
n
e
tt
e
 K

a
rk

li
n
s
 

(C
Y
P
S
);

  

A
u
th

o
r:
  

Ja
n
e
tt
e
 K

a
rk

li
n
s
 

(C
Y
P
S
) 

Page 51



 

R
is
k
 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

L
a
s
t 

R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 
I
m
p
a
c
t 
L
ik
e
li
h

o
o
d
 

R
is
k
 

S
c
o
r
e
 
S
ta
tu
s
 

C
o
u
n
te
r
m
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 

L
a
te
s
t 
N
o
te
 

R
is
k
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 

O
w
n
e
r
s
h
ip
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o

ff
e
re

d
  

e
) 

S
h
a
ri
n
g
 
o
f 
th

e
 
le
s
s
o
n
s
 
le
a
rn

t 

fr
o
m

 
th

o
s
e
 
w
h
o
 
a
re

 
in
s
p
e
c
te

d
 

o
v
e
r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
fe

w
 w

e
e
k
s
  

p
a
rt
 

o
f 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

g
o
o
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
. 
 

1
3
. 
F
a
il
u
re

 t
o
 

s
a
ti
s
fy

 O
fs
te

d
's
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
t 

th
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 

Ja
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
0
 

A
n
 

O
fs
te

d
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 

is
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
Ja

n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
0
 i
n
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
o
w
a
rd

s
 '
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

c
h
il
d
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le
' 
in
 

th
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
. 

T
h
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 b

e
in
g
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 

o
f 

th
e
 
S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 
P
la
n
 
fo

r 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
, 
w
h
ic
h
 
p
ro

v
id
e
s
 
th

e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 
w
it
h
 
a
 
fi
n
a
l 

c
h
a
n
c
e
 

to
 

m
a
k
e
 

th
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts
 

in
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
. 

0
8
 J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

C
L
O
S
E
D
 

 

T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 
 

a
) 

M
o
re

 
fo

c
u
s
e
d
 
S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

P
la
n
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
in
 
p
la
c
e
 
o
f 

JA
R
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 
P
la
n
 
n
o
w
 
in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts
 

fr
o
m

 
S
e
ri
o
u
s
 

C
a
s
e
 R

e
v
ie
w
s
  

b
) 

C
le
a
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

a
n
d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 
w
it
h
 
s
p
o
t 

c
h
e
c
k
in
g
 

a
n
d
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

o
f 

c
o
m

p
le
te

d
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
  

c
) 

S
tr
e
a
m

li
n
e
d
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts
 

a
ll
o
w
 

ti
m

e
 

to
 

b
e
 

s
p
e
n
t 

o
n
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry

  

d
) 

S
m

a
ll
 
S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 
S
te

e
ri
n
g
 

G
ro

u
p
 
e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 
in
 
p
la
c
e
 
o
f 

A
F
I 
L
e
a
d
s
 g

ro
u
p
 t
o
 d

ri
v
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
rw

a
rd

  

e
) 

T
h
e
m

e
 
le
a
d
s
 
a
t 

m
o
s
t 

s
e
n
io
r 

le
v
e
l 
e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 
to

 
c
o
-o

rd
in
a
te

 

th
e
m

e
s
 

a
n
d
 

p
ro

v
id
e
 

e
x
tr
a
 

le
a
d
e
rs

h
ip
 /
 d

ri
v
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
  

f)
 

M
o
re

 
h
a
n
d
s
 

o
n
 

ro
ll
 

fr
o
m

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 

a
n
d
 
s
tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
e
d
 
li
n
k
a
g
e
 
w
it
h
 

N
H
S
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
 

1
0
-0
2
-
2
0
1
0
 M
a
r
k
 

G
w
y
n
n
e
: 
 

R
is
k
 C

lo
s
e
d
. 
 

In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

o
n
-s

it
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
n
t 

w
e
ll
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
s
ir
e
d
 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

 

O
w
n
e
r:
  

P
e
te

r 
L
e
w
is
 

(C
Y
P
S
);

  

A
u
th

o
r:
  

M
a
rk

 G
w
y
n
n
e
 

(C
Y
P
S
) 

1
4
. 
T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 

ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

ju
d
ic
ia
l 
re

v
ie
w
 

w
il
l 
h
a
v
e
 a

 

T
h
e
re

 
is
 

a
 

ri
s
k
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

ju
d
ic
ia
l 

re
v
ie
w
 

w
il
l 

h
a
v
e
 

a
 

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 

C
&
Y
P
S
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 

0
8
 J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

3
 

3
 

9
 

 

T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 
 

a
) 

A
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs

h
ip
 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 
to

 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

re
g
a
rd

in
g
 

th
e
 

c
a
s
e
 1
1
-0
1
-
2
0
1
0
 P
e
te
r
 

L
e
w
is

: 
 

T
h
is
 
ri
s
k
 
is
 
n
o
t 

re
d
u
c
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 
Ju

d
ic
ia
l 
R
e
v
ie
w
 
is
 
s
ti
ll
 O

w
n
e
r:
  

P
e
te

r 
L
e
w
is
 

(C
Y
P
S
);

  

A
u
th

o
r:
  

Page 52



 

R
is
k
 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

L
a
s
t 

R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 
I
m
p
a
c
t 
L
ik
e
li
h

o
o
d
 

R
is
k
 

S
c
o
r
e
 
S
ta
tu
s
 

C
o
u
n
te
r
m
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 

L
a
te
s
t 
N
o
te
 

R
is
k
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 

O
w
n
e
r
s
h
ip
 

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 C

&
Y
P
S
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

re
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 

th
e
 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

s
 a

 

w
h
o
le
. 

th
e
 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le
. 

a
n
d
 S

e
ri
o
u
s
 C

a
s
e
 R

e
v
ie
w
s
  

b
) 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

b
e
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

w
it
h
 

k
e
y
 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 
to

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

, 
to

 
b
e
 

ro
ll
e
d
-o

u
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 p

a
rt
n
e
rs

  

c
) 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 

d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 

to
 

lo
o
k
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
b
e
in
g
 
m

a
d
e
 
a
n
d
 

to
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 
in
 
w
a
y
s
 
o
f 

w
o
rk

in
g
  

n
o
t 

c
o
m

p
le
te

 
a
n
d
 
u
n
li
k
e
ly
 

to
 

b
e
 

s
o
 

b
e
fo

re
 

M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
0
. 
 

M
a
rk

 G
w
y
n
n
e
 

(C
Y
P
S
) 

1
5
. 
S
u
p
e
rv

is
io
n
 

is
 n

o
t 
m

a
d
e
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
, 
o
r 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

h
a
p
p
e
n
 

c
o
n
s
is
te

n
tl
y
 t
o
 

a
 h

ig
h
 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 

fo
r 
S
o
c
ia
l 

W
o
rk

e
rs

. 

T
h
e
re

 
is
 
a
 
ri
s
k
 
th

a
t 

d
u
e
 
to

 

s
ta

ff
in
g
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 
o
r 

g
a
p
s
 t
h
a
t 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io
n
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t 
h
a
p
p
e
n
, 

o
r 

is
 
n
o
t 

m
a
d
e
 
to

 
h
a
p
p
e
n
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
is
te

n
tl
y
 

fo
r 
a
ll
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk

e
rs

. 
0
1
 D

e
c
 

2
0
0
9
 

5
 

3
 

1
5
 

 

T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 
 

a
) 

S
u
p
e
rv

is
o
rs

 
tr
a
in
e
d
 

in
 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io
n
  

b
) 

A
ll
 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io
n
 

s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 

d
ia
ri
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
  

c
) 

A
u
d
it
s
 

c
h
e
c
k
 

re
c
o
rd

s
 

o
f 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io
n
  

1
8
-0
1
-
1
0
 M
a
r
k
 G
w
y
n
n
e
: 

S
u
p
e
rv

is
io
n
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
h
e
ld
 

a
n
d
 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io
n
 

s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 

h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 

s
e
v
e
ra

l 
m

o
n
th

s
 

a
h
e
a
d
. 

R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m

s
 

h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
p
u
t 

in
 
p
la
c
e
 
to

 

e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io
n
 

h
a
p
p
e
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
th

a
t 

it
 
is
 
o
f 

s
u
it
a
b
le
 q

u
a
li
ty

. 
 

O
w
n
e
r:
  

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra

z
il
 

(C
Y
P
S
);

  

A
u
th

o
r:
  

It
a
 O

'D
o
n
o
v
a
n
 

(H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
) 

1
6
. 
R
e
c
o
rd

s
 a

re
 

n
o
t 
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
tl
y
 

w
e
ll
 

m
a
in
ta

in
e
d
, 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 w

it
h
in
 

a
n
y
 

o
rg

a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
re

 
is
 
a
 
ri
s
k
 
th

a
t 

re
c
o
rd

s
 

a
n
d
 

c
a
s
e
fi
le
s
 

a
re

 
n
o
t 

m
a
in
ta

in
e
d
 
c
o
n
s
is
te

n
tl
y
 
to

 
a
 

h
ig
h
 
e
n
o
u
g
h
 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 
w
it
h
in
 

a
n
y
 
o
rg

a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l,
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr
a
ti
n
g
 
w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 
in
 

th
e
 

q
u
a
li
ty

 
o
f 

w
o
rk

 
o
r 

re
c
o
rd

in
g
 o

f 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
. 

0
1
 D

e
c
 

2
0
0
9
 

4
 

4
 

1
6
 

 
T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 
 

a
) 

C
re

a
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

a
u
d
it
 
to

o
ls
 
a
n
d
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 o

f 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

  

b
) 

A
u
d
it
in
g
 
o
f 

c
a
s
e
 
fi
le
s
 
w
it
h
in
 

C
Y
P
S
 a

n
d
 N

H
S
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
  

c
) 

M
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

a
u
d
it
 

o
f 

1
0
 

c
a
s
e
s
  

0
1
-1
2
-
2
0
0
9
 E
le
a
n
o
r
 

B
r
a
z
il
: 
 

C
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv
e
 
a
u
d
it
in
g
 
o
f 

fi
le
s
 
h
a
s
 
ta

k
e
n
 
p
la
c
e
 
o
n
 

o
v
e
r 

1
0
0
 

fi
le
s
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r.
 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
 

th
a
t 

th
e
re

 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 r
e
c
o
rd

s
. 
 

O
w
n
e
r:
  

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra

z
il
 

(C
Y
P
S
);

  

A
u
th

o
r:
  

It
a
 O

'D
o
n
o
v
a
n
 

(H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
) 

1
7
. 
N
e
w
 s
o
c
ia
l 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 d
o
 n

o
t 

a
rr
iv
e
 i
n
 t
im

e
 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id
e
 t
h
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
n
e
w
 s
o
c
ia
l 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 
b
e
in
g
 

re
c
ru

it
e
d
 

d
o
 

n
o
t 

a
rr
iv
e
 

in
 

ti
m

e
 

to
 

s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
tl
y
 
in
c
re

a
s
e
 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

a
n
d
 

le
a
d
 

to
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr
a
b
le
 

0
1
 D

e
c
 

2
0
0
9
 

C
L
O
S
E
D
 

 

T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 
 

a
) 

U
s
e
 
o
f 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 
c
o
v
e
r 

u
n
ti
l 

s
ta

ff
 a

re
 i
n
 p

o
s
t 
 

b
) 

P
la
n
 f
o
r 
a
rr
iv
a
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
  

1
7
-0
2
-
2
0
1
0
 S
P
S
G
: 
 

R
is
k
 c
lo
s
e
d
 

In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 n

o
w
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 
s
ta

ff
 
w
e
re

 
re

ta
in
e
d
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

O
w
n
e
r:
  

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra

z
il
 

(C
Y
P
S
);

  

A
u
th

o
r:
  

It
a
 O

'D
o
n
o
v
a
n
 

Page 53



 

R
is
k
 

D
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

L
a
s
t 

R
e
v
ie
w
 

D
a
te
 
I
m
p
a
c
t 
L
ik
e
li
h

o
o
d
 

R
is
k
 

S
c
o
r
e
 
S
ta
tu
s
 

C
o
u
n
te
r
m
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 

L
a
te
s
t 
N
o
te
 

R
is
k
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 

O
w
n
e
r
s
h
ip
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 

d
e
li
v
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

in
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

a
n
d
 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 

o
u
r 
c
h
il
d
re

n
. 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts
 i
n
 p

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
h
e
a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
. 

c
) 
R
e
g
u
la
r 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
in
g
 

p
o
s
it
io
n
  

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

o
n
 

ru
n
-u

p
 

to
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
. 

 
O
n
g
o
in
g
 
ri
s
k
s
 

s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

n
o
t 
li
n
k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 

s
ti
ll
 
e
x
is
t 

a
n
d
 
th

e
s
e
 
a
re

 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 a

s
 r
is
k
 2

. 
 

(H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
) 

1
8
. 
T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 

ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
G
O
S
H
 

in
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
 f
a
il
 

to
 r
e
c
ru

it
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

s
ta

ff
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 v

is
it
in
g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

il
l 

im
p
a
c
t 
lo
n
g
-

te
rm

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry

 

T
h
e
re

 
is
 
a
 
ri
s
k
 
th

a
t 

G
O
S
H
 
in
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

fa
il
 

to
 

re
c
ru

it
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
ta

ff
 t
o
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

v
is
it
in
g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

w
il
l 

im
p
a
c
t 

lo
n
g
-t
e
rm

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

. 
 

1
2
 J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

3
 

3
 

9
 

 

W
o
rk

 
o
n
 
s
ta

ff
in
g
 
s
k
il
l 

m
ix
 
a
n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
o
v
e
r 
is
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
  

1
2
-0
1
-
2
0
1
0
 T
in
a
 

R
a
p
h
a
e
l:
  

N
o
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 

s
in
c
e
 

la
s
t 

u
p
d
a
te

. 
 

O
w
n
e
r:
  

Ja
n
e
 C

o
ll
in
s
 

(H
e
a
lt
h
);
  

A
u
th

o
r:
  

Ja
n
e
 E

li
a
s
 

(H
e
a
lt
h
) 

1
9
. 
N
H
S
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 P

la
n
 

T
h
e
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 

P
la
n
 

fo
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

is
 

in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 
to

 

e
n
s
u
re

 
N
H
S
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

c
a
n
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 

c
h
il
d
re

n
's
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s
ta

ff
  

1
2
 J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

3
 

3
 

9
 

 

A
rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
a
re

 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

in
 

p
la
c
e
, 
b
o
th

 i
n
 s

ta
ff
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

s
k
il
l 

m
ix
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
o
v
e
r 
is
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
  

1
2
-0
1
-
2
0
1
0
 T
in
a
 

R
a
p
h
a
e
l:
  

N
o
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 

s
in
c
e
 

la
s
t 

u
p
d
a
te

. 
 

R
is
k
 O

w
n
e
r:
 

T
ra

c
e
y
 B

a
ld
w
in
 

(N
H
S
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
);
  

R
is
k
 A

u
th

o
r:
  

Ju
li
e
 Q

u
in
n
  

(H
e
a
lt
h
) 

2
0
. 
F
a
il
u
re

 t
o
 

m
e
e
t 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s
 

a
s
 

c
o
m

m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

fo
r 
H
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

F
a
il
u
re

 
to

 
m

e
e
t 

th
e
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

c
h
il
d
re

n
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

in
 

v
ie
w
 

o
f 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
's
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
il
it
y
 
a
n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 

a
s
 

c
o
m

m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

fo
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

in
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 

T
h
is
 
im

p
a
c
ts

 
o
n
 
a
 

ra
n
g
e
 

o
f 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

a
n
d
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

, 

q
u
a
li
ty

 a
n
d
 r
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
. 
 

1
2
 J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0
 

5
 

4
 

2
0
 

 

T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 
 

a
) 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

F
ra

m
e
w
o
rk

 
F
o
r 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
il
d
re

n
  

b
) 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

p
o
li
c
ie
s
 

, 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 t
ra

in
in
g
  

c
) 
JA

R
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
  

d
) 
T
ra

in
in
g
 f
ig
u
re

s
  

1
2
-0
1
-
2
0
1
0
 T
in
a
 

R
a
p
h
a
e
l:
  

N
o
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 

s
in
c
e
 

la
s
t 

u
p
d
a
te

. 
 

O
w
n
e
r:
  

T
ra

c
e
y
 B

a
ld
w
in
 

(N
H
S
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
);
 

A
u
th

o
r:
  

Ju
li
e
 Q

u
in
n
  

(N
H
S
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
) 

 

Page 54



 

 
 
 

 Overview and Scrutiny                    On 8th March 2010 
 
 

 

Report Title:  Report from Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Performance  
Advisory Committee  

Report of  Peter Lewis, Director of Children and Young People’s Service 
 
 

Contact Officer : Hilary Corrick, Independent Social Work Consultant, & Independent 

Member 

 
 
Wards(s) affected: ALL  
 

Report for: Non Key Decision  

1. Purpose of the report  

This report gives feedback from the most recent meeting of the Children’s Safeguarding 
Policy and Performance Advisory Committee, with particular reference to the report recently 
(20th January) considered at Overview and Scrutiny Committee on local health visiting 
services.  

 

2. Recommendations 

That the Overview & Scrutiny Committee note and consider the report. 
 

 
3. Reason for recommendation(s) 

 

 
4. Other options considered 

N/A 
 

5.  Chief Financial Officer Comments 

N/A 
 

6.  Head of Legal Services Comments 

N/A 
 
 

7.  Head of Procurement Comments  

N/A 

Agenda Item 8Page 55



 

 

8.  Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments 

N/A 
 

9.  Consultation  
N/A 

 

10.  Service Financial Comments 
There are no specific financial issues arising from this report.  

 

11.  Use of appendices / Tables and photographs 

 

12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 

 
Background  

 
The Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Performance Advisory Committee is a back bench 
Committee which looks in detail at safeguarding aspects of policy and practice. As such, it has 
links with the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and their regular reviews of child safeguarding 
work. 

 
Report on Health Visiting Services 

 
Councillor Mallett presented to the Committee a report which had previously been considered 
by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 20th January 2010. 

  
Members noted that in July 2008 the decision had been made by the PCT, due to staff 
shortages, to suspend the traditional universal health visiting services on a temporary basis and 
to concentrate on those in greatest need. This meant that children and families were assessed 
at the new birth visit, or on the first contact with the service and were then prioritised for further 
intervention. Where there were no concerns families were given contact details for any queries 
or concerns that they had. This is called “progressive universalism”, and the independent 
member informed the Committee that this model is being implemented in other areas and is 
based on research evidence.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee had expressed concern 
that they had not been informed of these changes earlier and felt that there could be some 
stigmatisation around targeted services. 

 
“Progressive universalism” allows health visiting services to use their limited resources of highly 
skilled and experienced health visitors (there are national shortages and an aging work force) in 
a targeted way, providing high levels of support to first time mothers and those with specific 
vulnerabilities from health visitors and other health staff. There are however, anxieties that the 
initial assessment may not always pick up significant concerns: for example, post natal 
depression, domestic violence, child disabilities. Some parents, thought likely to be low risk, 
might be too vulnerable to seek help themselves. 

 

Page 56



 

 Officers advised that they had experienced some difficulties with contacting health visitors but 
that the situation should improve with the move to multi agency working and the location of 
three health visitors  to be based in their offices. However there was concern that the health 
visiting duty desk was staffed by health visiting assistants or administrative staff and not 
qualified HV staff. 
 
Members of the Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Performance Advisory Committee were 
concerned about how the targeting was carried out given that the under fives are a particular 
vulnerable group. Also there was no reference to the views of families. 

 
Recommendation: The Committee asked that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
request that NHS Haringey carry out an evaluation of the targeted service, now 
operational since July 2008, and consider convening a Parents’ Focus group to establish 
the views of parents.  

 
ANNUAL CHILD PROTECTION CONFERENCE 
A proposal was made in September 2009 by the Chair of the Children’s Safeguarding Policy 
and Performance Advisory Committee that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, as part of its 
regular reviews of child protection work, should convene an annual child protection conference, 
in partnership possibly with the local Safeguarding Board. Members of the Committee endorsed 
this proposal and were anxious to know of progress in this matter. 

 
COMMITTEE UPDATE 
At their recent meeting members of the Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Performance 
Advisory Committee received a report on the new eligibility thresholds now used by the Children 
and Young People’s Service and widely disseminated across the authority. 

 
Members were informed that the Children’s Service were working on joint protocols with Adult 
Services. It was acknowledged that some adults with children were vulnerable and needed 
support. This had to be taken into account and worked with. Also it was noted that the adult 
threshold for receiving support was high and many adults who did not meet the threshold level 
needed additional support, especially if they had parenting responsibilities.  

 
There was a detailed report setting out the processes from referral to review for children “at risk 
of significant harm” and an update on those cases subject to child protection processes being 
tracked by the Committee since July 1st 2009. 

 
The Committee also considered their own role in the range of mechanisms for monitoring and 
auditing safeguarding in Haringey. Although it was thought that it had been intended that this 
Committee would be short term, members felt that it had a unique role in looking in detail at 
individual cases and processes, and that to disband the Committee would send out the wrong 
message. The Committee will report to Cabinet that the Committee should continue its work and 
possibly report direct to Council. It was essential that it should continue to be supported by an 
independent member. 

 
Future work plans: 
The Committee plans to look in detail all children under 5 referred in January 2010, or if the  
numbers were excessive, then to examine under 2s or a random selection of a percentage of 
under 5s referrals. Other areas for exploration include looking at children who fall just below the 
eligibility threshold, transition of children in need to services for vulnerable adults, and children 
of parents in receipt of adult social services. 

 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 Overview and Scrutiny                    On 8th March 2010 
 
 

 

Report Title: An Update Report on key Performance Issues in Child Protection  

 

Report of  Peter Lewis, Director of Children and Young People’s Service 

 
 
Signed :   
 

Contact Officer : Mark Gurrey,   Assistant Director,  Performance  

 
 
Wards(s) affected: ALL  
 

Report for: Non Key Decision  

1. Purpose of the report  

 
This report provides update on some key performance issues relating to the Council’s 
work to safeguard and protect vulnerable children.  
 

2. Recommendations 

To note this report. 
 

 
3. Reason for recommendation(s) 

 

 
4. Other options considered 

N/A 
 

5.  Chief Financial Officer Comments 

N/A 
 

6.  Head of Legal Services Comments 

N/A 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 59



 2 

7.  Head of Procurement Comments  

N/A 
 

8.  Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments 

N/A 
 

9.  Consultation  
 
N/A 

10.  Service Financial Comments 
 
There are no specific financial issues arising from this report.  

 

11.  Use of appendices / Tables and photographs 
 
Attached are the national KPIs for the Children and Families Service  

 

12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 

 
Commentary  

 
13. NI 68 – this measures the conversion rate of referrals going onto be initial 

referrals. Outturns are increasingly closer to national and statistical 
neighbours.  

 
14.  NI 59 – initial assessments, once authorised, should be completed in 7 

days to ensure an early and timely view is taken of children’s needs.  
 
15.  NI 60 – for more complex cases, a more comprehensive assessment is 

required. These are known as ‘core assessments’ and are required to be 
completed in 35 days.  

 
16.  Numbers subject to a child protection plan – this is what previously was 

referred to as the child protection register. There has been a recent 
increase in numbers and we are now probably at a more realistic level for 
the borough than hitherto. 
 

17.  NI 67 – children who are subject to plans should be reviewed initially after 
three months and then every six months thereafter.  

 

Page 60



 3 

18.       NI 65 – this measures children newly becoming subject to a plan who had 
previously had a plan some time in their earlier life. Numbers are small 
and monthly variations are not a reliable indicator of performance. 

 
19.       NI 64 – this measures children who, when their child protection plan 

ceases, had had a plan for two or more years. Again monthly variation is 
too small to be a reliable indicator of trends.  

 
20.       Number of children in care – Members will observe the increase over the 

last 12 months which is reflected nationally.  
 

21.       NI 66 – as with children subject to plans, children in care also have to 
regularly reviewed. Performance in this area is good. 

 
22.      NI 63 and 62 – are both measures of the stability of children in care. NI63 

measures those who have been in the same placement for at least 2 of the 
last 2.5 yrs. Performance is somewhat below national averages but has 
increased over the course of the year. NI62 measures how many children 
have three or more moves in the course of a year – performance is good 
(and when these PIs were subject to bandings, 0-16% was considered top 
performance)  

 
23.      Adoptions/SGOs and NI 61 – again very small numbers and monthly 

trends are not helpful.  
 

24.      NI 147 – measures the number of care leavers known to be in suitable 
accommodation.  

 
25.      NI 148 – is a subset of the Council’s NEET figures. Care leavers are one of 

the hard to reach groups. Performance is measured annually. 
 

 

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Children and Families National Indicators 2009-10 – Updated February 10. 
 
Referrals and Assessments  

Number of Contacts and Referrals

231
240

268378339 275 333 330 308 288

9671030

12181156
11091037

1323
1458

1301

1495

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-0

9

J
u
n
-0

9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
u
g
-0

9

S
e
p
-0

9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-0

9

D
e
c
-0

9

J
a
n
-1

0

Month

R
e
fe

rr
a
ls

  
  
 C

o
n
ta

c
ts

 

 

NI 68 Referrals to children's social care going on to initial 

assessments

44.4

30.7

46.5 47.7 45.5

61.4

45.3

58

66 63.3

75.3

58
63.4 64

M
a
rc

h
 0

9

O
u
tt

u
rn

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-0

9

J
u
n
-0

9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
u
g
-0

9

S
e
p
-0

9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-0

9

D
e
c
-0

9

J
a
n
-1

0

0
9
-1

0

P
la

n

S
N

A
v
e
ra

g
e

N
A

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 

 

 

NI 59 Percentage of Initial Assessments Completed in 7 

days

79.1

25

14.1 11.9 14.7

25.9 23.7

35.2

26
34.9

41.4

53

77.6
72

M
a
rc

h
 0

9

O
u
tt

u
rn

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-0

9

J
u
n
-0

9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
u
g
-0

9

S
e
p
-0

9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-0

9

D
e
c
-0

9

J
a
n
-1

0

0
9
-1

0

P
la

n

S
N

A
v
e
ra

g
e

N
A

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 

 

 

Page 63



 

 

NI 60 Percentage of Core Assessments completed within 35 

days
83.3

24.1 26.4

40.4 40.9

31.9

59.6
53.8

43.1 45.4 43.7

63

82.1
78

M
a
rc

h
 0

9

O
u
tt

u
rn

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-0

9

J
u
n
-0

9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
u
g
-0

9

S
e
p
-0

9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-0

9

D
e
c
-0

9

J
a
n
-1

0

0
9
-1

0

P
la

n

S
N

A
v
e
ra

g
e

N
A

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 

 

Children Subject to a CP Plan 
 

Number of Children subject to a CP plan per 10,000 

populaton

38 36 38 38
35 37 36 37 38 37

41
44 46 47

54
57

42

31

O
c
t-

0
8

N
o
v
-0

8

D
e
c
-0

8

J
a
n
-0

9

F
e
b
-0

9

M
a
r-

0
9

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-0

9

J
u
n
-0

9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
u
g
-0

9

S
e
p
-0

9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-0

9

D
e
c
-0

9

J
a
n
-1

0

S
N

A
v
e
ra

g
e

N
A

 

 

NI 67 Reviews of Child Protection Cases. The percentage of 

child protection cases which should have been reviewed 

within the year that were reviewed. This is the year to date 

figure.

100 100 100

96.4 96.2 95.8

93.5 93.3 93.6
94.3 94.8

100 99.5 99

M
a
rc

h
 0

9

O
u
tt

u
rn

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-0

9

J
u
n
-0

9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
u
g
-0

9

S
e
p
-0

9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-0

9

D
e
c
-0

9

J
a
n
-1

0

0
9
-1

0

P
la

n

S
N

A
v
e
ra

g
e

N
A

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 

 

Page 64



 

NI 65 The percentage of children with a new CP plan during 

the month/year who had previously been the subject of a 

plan. Including year to date.

5.6

0

20

8

25

15.4
13.4

10
12.3 13

33.3

5.6 3.8

12.5

7.7

M
a
r-

0
9

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-0

9

J
u
n
-0

9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
u
g
-0

9

S
e
p
-0

9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-0

9

D
e
c
-0

9

J
a
n
-1

0

Y
e
a
r 
to

 d
a
te

0
9
-1

0
 P

la
n

S
N

 A
v

N
A

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 

 

NI 64 Duration with a CP plan. The percentage of children whose CP 

plans have ceased during the year who had been subject of a plan 

continuously for two years or more.  

4.7
0 0

10
15.8

5.3

19

0

15.2

5
7.7 6

40 42.1

25

M
a
rc

h
 0

9

O
u
tt

u
rn

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-0

9

J
u
n
-0

9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
u
g
-0

9

S
e
p
-0

9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-0

9

D
e
c
-0

9

J
a
n
-1

0

Y
e
a
r 
to

d
a
te

0
9
-1

0

P
la

n

S
N

A
v
e
ra

g
e

N
A

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 

 
Children in Care 
 

Number of Children in Care per 10,000 population

91 93 95 93 97 100 105 105 106 105 106 105 107 110 113 114

88

55

O
c
t-

0
8

N
o
v
-0

8

D
e
c
-0

8

J
a
n
-0

9

F
e
b
-0

9

M
a
r-

0
9

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-0

9

J
u
n
-0

9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
u
g
-0

9

S
e
p
-0

9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-0

9

D
e
c
-0

9

J
a
n
-1

0

S
N

A
v
e
ra

g
e

N
A

 
 
 
 

Page 65



NI 61 LAC adopted to date and placed for adoption within 12 

months of best interest decision being made. 
80

0 0 0

50 50
57.1 57.1

50 50 50

78 79.1 75.8

M
a
rc

h
 0

9

O
u
tt

u
rn

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-0

9

J
u
n
-0

9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
u
g
-0

9

S
e
p
-0

9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-0

9

D
e
c
-0

9

J
a
n
-1

0

0
9
-1

0

P
la

n

S
N

A
v
e
ra

g
e

N
A

Percentage

 

 

 

NI 63 Long term stability of CIC. Children under 16 who have been 

looked after for 2.5 years or more and in the same placement for at 

least 2 years

56.3 59 58 60 61 63.2 65 65
69 69.7 69.6 70 70.2 67

M
a
rc

h
 0

9

O
u
tt

u
rn

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-0

9

J
u
n
-0

9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
u
g
-0

9

S
e
p
-0

9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-0

9

D
e
c
-0

9

J
a
n
-1

0

0
9
-1

0

P
la

n

S
N

A
v
e
ra

g
e

N
A

Percentage

 

 

 

NI 62 Stability of Placements of CIC. The percentage of 

Children looked after at 31st March with three or more 

placements during the year

14.6
13.4 13.9 13.9 13.6

12.3 12.8 12.2 12.8 12.3
13.9

11
10 10.7

M
a
r-

0
9

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-0

9

J
u
n
-0

9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
u
g
-0

9

S
e
p
-0

9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-0

9

D
e
c
-0

9

J
a
n
-1

0

0
9
-1

0

P
la

n

S
N

A
v
e
ra

g
e

N
A

 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 
 
 
 
 

Page 66



Adoptions and Special Guardianship

 of Children in Care

22

1 0
3

5
3 2 2 1 2 3

22

28

M
a
rc

h

O
u
tt

u
rn

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-0

9

J
u
n
-0

9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
u
g
-0

9

S
e
p
-0

9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-0

9

D
e
c
-0

9

J
a
n
-1

0

T
o
ta

l 

0
9
-1

0

P
la

n

N
u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 
C

h
il
d
re

n

 

 

Care Leavers 
 

NI 147 Care Leavers in suitable accomodation

91.7
100

88.9
80

33.3

100

25

100 100

66.7 66.7
78.6

97
89 89.6

M
a
rc

h
 0

9

O
u
tt

u
rn

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-0

9

J
u
n
-0

9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
u
g
-0

9

S
e
p
-0

9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-0

9

D
e
c
-0

9

J
a
n
-1

0

Y
T
D

0
9
-1

0

P
la

n

S
N

A
v
e
ra

g
e

N
A

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 

 

 

NI 148 Care Leavers in education, training or employment

70.8

100

66.7
80

33.3

83.3

25

50

100

33.3

50
60.4

78
66 63

M
a
rc

h
 0

9

O
u
tt

u
rn

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-0

9

J
u
n
-0

9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
u
g
-0

9

S
e
p
-0

9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-0

9

D
e
c
-0

9

J
a
n
-1

0

Y
T
D

0
9
-1

0

P
la

n

S
N

A
v
e
ra

g
e

N
A

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 

 

 

 

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

 Overview and Scrutiny                    On 8th March 2010 
 
 

 

Report Title:  A Report on NI59 – Initial Assessments Completed in 7 days   

 

Report of  Peter Lewis, Director of Children and Young People’s Service 

 
 
Signed  
 

Contact Officer : Mark Gurrey,   Assistant Director,  Performance  

 
 
Wards(s) affected: ALL  
 

Report for: Non Key Decision  

1. Purpose of the report  

This report sets out some background details on NI59 performance issues.  
 

2. Recommendations 

That the Overview & Scrutiny Committee note and consider the report. 
 

 
3. Reason for recommendation(s) 

 

 
4. Other options considered 

N/A 
 

5.  Chief Financial Officer Comments 

N/A 
 

6.  Head of Legal Services Comments 

N/A 
 

7.  Head of Procurement Comments  

N/A 

Agenda Item 10Page 69



 

 

8.  Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments 

N/A 
 

9.  Consultation  
N/A 

 

10.  Service Financial Comments 
There are no specific financial issues arising from this report.  

 

11.  Use of appendices / Tables and photographs 

 

12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 

 
Background  

 
13. In order to look in more detail at performance in this area, some contextual 

background will be helpful. Everything that comes into the service is judged as a 
‘contact’. All of these contacts are viewed by a manager. The majority (see figures 
below) do not require any further action. Where it is judged the contact does 
require more attention and properly meets the stated thresholds, then they are 
accepted as referrals. Once accepted as a referral, work can either be quickly 
completed or, where it is clear more substantial intervention is required, then either 
an initial assessment (IA) is commissioned or it will move immediately to a Section 
47 child protection investigation. Equally, there are times when an IA is initiated 
and it becomes clear that concerns are greater than first assessed and the case 
moves to a S47. It is important to remember that the pathway through the system 
is not always linear and children’s journeys will mirror their needs - it is partly 
because of the individualised nature of each child’s circumstances that a 
straightforward numerical analysis cannot reveal the whole picture. 

 
14.   For the 6 month period July-December 2009: 

Numbers of Contacts:   6,873 
Numbers of Referrals:   1,812 (conversion rate = 26%) 
Number of IAs:    1,018 (approx) 
Conversion Rate of Referrals to IAs: 56% 

 
 
15.  Once it has been decided that an IA is required, the expectation is that it is 

completed in 7 working days. The original thinking behind this indicator was to 
ensure that children referred to social care have an early assessment of their 
needs, to ensure that the service they need delivered in a timely manner and most 
importantly to ensure that no children are left unprotected.  

 

Page 70



 

16.       Our performance against this indicator has been subject to considerable scrutiny, 
both by this Committee and elsewhere (not least by operational managers) since 
the JAR (now Safeguarding) Action Plan. Current performance against this 
indicator is as follows:  

 

• 26.1% ytd as at end of January 2010 

• Target    53% 

• National Average   72% (2008-09) 

• Statistical neighbours  77% (2008-09) 
 

17.     The 2008-09 figures above should be treated with some caution as the national 
increase in workload on social care services may well have had a negative impact 
on these figures.  

 
18.     NI 59 has become something of a proxy measure for the functioning of the whole 

service and this report seeks to put that KPI in a broader context and offer a more 
comprehensive summary of service performance. 

 
19.    The Head of Service and all operational managers are provided with a case by 

case breakdown of ALL cases in their service every week and so each child can be 
and is tracked quite easily. Those cases which do not have an allocated social 
worker are subject to regular scrutiny by the Head of Service and other managers 
to ensure their needs are not being lost and that they are being constantly 
prioritised against all new incoming work. FR managers meet three times a week 
with colleagues from health and Police and they plan for the response to the most 
concerning cases and those that come back as re-referrals.  
  

20.       There are three key areas that need further exploration to properly assess our 
current performance and before any broader conclusions can be drawn about the 
service as a whole. 

 
21.      Firstly, this is by definition a process indicator; it can only measure timeliness and 

cannot report on the quality of the intervention.  Since March 2009, there has been 
a considerable focus on improving the quality of intervention with children and 
encouraging staff to generate better assessments even if they exceeded the time 
limit. This re-focussing has been welcomed by staff and evidence is growing that 
the quality of assessments are improving as a consequence.  

 
22.      The Lead Member has commissioned an independent monthly audit of both IAs 

and Core Assessments since March 2009 and those audits have shown a steady 
improvement in the quality of work completed. This audit does not lend itself to 
detailed statistical reporting save to say that in the November audit cases were 
audited against the relevant practice Standards and it was found that 79% of the 
initials and 69% of cores met or nearly met our declared Practice Standards. The 
summary of the November audits concluded that for initials “on the whole the 
standards are being met….. Most were sound assessments with evidence and 
analysis of risk ensuring appropriate outcomes and follow up measures.”   

 
23.       The case file audit programme carried out by all senior managers (including the 

Director) demonstrates that the risk assessments/Section 47s showed an 
improvement in judgements of good from 27% in October to 49% in November and 

Page 71



 

70% in December.  Conversely, judgements of inadequate fell from 38% to 23% 
and 20%. The domain that measures ‘key assessment episodes’  rose in 
judgements of good from 31% to 36% and then 43% - inadequate judgements fell 
from 39% to 32% (in both November and December). 

 
24.      There is therefore growing evidence that the quality of assessments is improving. 

The recent Ofsted inspection focussed considerably more on the quality of work 
being produced rather than the timeliness and a verbal update on their findings will 
be presented to OSC.  

 
25.       A further audit has been carried out on a number of cases where the IAs were 

completed out of timescale to specifically judge whether the delay in any sense left 
children at risk. Of the 20 cases looked at in one case only was it clear that a more 
timely response was required. Other cases demonstrated either some very 
thorough social work input far beyond that required for an IA which necessarily 
took it over time or some appropriate prioritisation of other more pressing child 
protection work.  

 
26.       Secondly, a judgement about this aspect of the service needs to be taken in the 

round with reference to other data. A ‘simple’ focus on NI59 to the exclusion of 
other data and information can not provide a very detailed or indeed accurate 
picture of the service as a whole. 

 
27.       There is a need to understand something about activity and demand levels firstly. 

In 2008-09, Haringey reported receiving 2,815 referrals and completed 1250 Initial 
Assessments. Figures in paragraph 14 above indicate that those figures this year 
will be around 4,000 and over 2,000 respectively.  

 
28.       At any one time in First Response, there will approximately 150 Section 47 

investigations in train. These are by definition the most pressing ones on the 
service and their progress is subject to considerable daily management attention. 
These cases will always assume greater priority than those allocated for IA which 
in the main will be concerning children in need as opposed to children in need of 
protection. There is no PI attached to their completion.  

 
29.      This increase in demand combined with the identification of incomplete work earlier 

in the year led has meant that some children have had to wait to be allocated to a 
social worker and as a consequence the timetable for their IAs was overrun before 
the work started. The level of outstanding assessments waiting allocation to a 
social worker has steadily reduced from over 200 earlier in the year to the current 
position of less than 20. 

 
30.       It is also important to gather some sense about the complexity of work before the 

service. An audit conducted on a week chosen at random at the end of 2009 
identified the following amongst the cases being worked with:  

• child disclosing she had been hit with a belt by her father, mother and aunt 

• child who had fallen out of a window 

• hot liquid being spilt onto a baby during a domestic violence incident 

• 14 year old disclosing sexual activity by her father, including touching her breasts 

Page 72



 

• 6 year old with an eating problem, who has told her mother that she intends to stab 
her 11 year old brother 

• 2 siblings under 11, showing sexualised behaviour, clearly underfed, whose 
weights were dropping, believed to be fed bread and water as punishment  

• 15 year old admitted to hospital after overdosing on 20 tablets, whose mother on 
returning home to find her had done nothing, leaving the girl herself to call an 
ambulance 

 
31.      These and other similar cases are complex requiring a detailed and 

comprehensive assessment and response – completing them in 7 days will often 
not fit with the best interests of the child.  

 
32.       Thirdly, the other two points notwithstanding, there is evidence that performance 

in this area is improving. We have examined all initial assessments that began and 
finished in the same month for both December and January and when 
performance is isolated in this way we are able to demonstrate outcomes of 83% 
and 86% respectively. What continues to bring down the data is the number of 
cases that have been in the system for a longer period and that are completed 
beyond the 7 days as set out in para 26 above.  

 
33.       Finally, it is worth noting that Government are consulting on extending this 

indicator to 10 working days and this has been welcomed by the sector. Clearly it 
remains a process indicator and there is no proposals forthcoming about quality 
indicators but this does represent a more reasonable timescale to make an initial 
response to children’s needs.                                 

      

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes
	7 SAFEGUARDING PLAN
	Item 7 Safeguarding App 1
	Item 7 Safeguarding App 2 COLOUR
	Item 7 Safeguarding App 3 COLOUR
	Item 7 Safeguarding App 4 COLOUR

	8 Safeguarding Policy and Performance Advisory Committee
	9 Child Protection Performance and Key Issues
	Item 9 Graphs (word) 05 02 10

	10 NI 59 - Initial assessments for children's social care completed within 7 days

